
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board Special Meeting
Agenda
Tuesday, February 16, 2021

- 1 -

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD

AGENDA
Tuesday, February 16, 2021 @ 2:00 PM

All board members will attend virtually via video conference at a link provided at 
https://svcsb.ok.gov/.  Statewide Virtual Charter School Board staff will meet in person at the 
Oklahoma History Center, 800 Nazih Zuhdi Dr., Oklahoma City, OK 73105, for the Public 
Administrative Rules Hearing. 

Those wishing to provide comment regarding the proposed Administrative Rule changes may do 
so in person at 800 Nazih Zuhdi Dr., Oklahoma City, OK 73105, as published.  The public may 
also provide comment through the virtual meeting option through a link provided at 
https://svcsb.ok.gov/. 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE OPEN MEETING ACT
(Special scheduled meeting held February 16, 2021)

This specially scheduled meeting of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board has been
convened in accordance with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act.

This meeting was preceded by advance notice of the date, time and place, filed with the
Oklahoma Secretary of State on February 11, 2021.

Notice of this meeting was also given at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting by
posting notice of the date, time, place and agenda of the meeting by 2:00pm on February
11,2021, on the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board website and at the principal office of
the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board, located at 840 Research Parkway Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma.

3. PERMANENT RULE MAKING AND PUBLIC COMMENT

Pursuant to Notice of Rulemaking Intent:

The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall hold a rule hearing and hear
public comment regarding proposed rule changes currently on the Board meeting
agenda. Public comments will be limited to only proposed rule changes.  A sign-up sheet
will be posted at least fifteen (15) minutes prior to the scheduled start time of the Board
Meeting.  Sign up must be completed prior to the scheduled start time of the meeting.
Only individuals who have signed up to speak will be recognized during the
Public Comment period and will be recognized in the order in which they have signed
in.  Each speaker will be allocated five (5) minutes for presentation.  The Board
Chairperson may interrupt and/or terminate any presentation during public comment,

1

https://svcsb.ok.gov/
https://svcsb.ok.gov/


Statewide Virtual Charter School Board Special Meeting
Agenda
Tuesday, February 16, 2021

- 2 -

which does not conform to the procedures outlined under this Section.  The Board 
Chairperson reserves and retains the right to interrupt or postpone public comment as 
necessary to effectuate the management of the public meeting.
 
(Action)           Hearing and consideration of public comments, discussion and possible 
vote to adopt proposed amendments to Title 777 of the Oklahoma Administrative Code 
as presented or as may be revised after public hearing and discussion - Chairman Robert 
Franklin and Marie Schuble, Counsel for the Board and Assistant Attorney General
 
TITLE 777. STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD
CHAPTER 1. STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOLS
Subchapter 1.  General Provisions

777:1-1-6.  Records requests. [AMENDED]

CHAPTER 10. STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOLS
Subchapter 1.  General Provisions
 
777:10-1-2.  Definitions [AMENDED]
777:10-1-3.  School establishment requirements [AMENDED]
777:10-1-4.  Management organizations [NEW]
777:10-1-5.  Learning funds [NEW]

Subchapter 3. Statewide Virtual Charter School Sponsorship
 
777:10-3-3.  Applications to sponsor statewide virtual charter schools; renewal and 
termination of contracts for sponsorship of statewide virtual charter schools 
[AMENDED]
777:10-3-4.  Oversight and evaluation of virtual charter schools by the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board [AMENDED]
777:10-3-5.  Statewide virtual charter school facilities [AMENDED]

CHAPTER 15. OKLAHOMA SUPPLEMENTAL ONLINE COURSE 
CERTIFICATION

777:15-1-1.  Purpose [AMENDED]
777:15-1-3.  Application for course certification [AMENDED]
777:15-1-5   Course review requirements [AMENDED]
777:15-1-6.  Course review and certification process [AMENDED]
777:15-1-7.  Certified courses remaining in good standing [AMENDED]
777:15-1-9.  SVCSB responsibilities [AMENDED]
 

4. ADJOURNMENT

The Board may take any item on this agenda out of order. The Board may discuss and/or vote to approve, 
disapprove, or take other action on any item listed on this agenda.

2



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

 
 

TITLE 777.  STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD 
 

CHAPTER 1.  ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS 
SUBCHAPTER 1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

    
777:1-1-1. Purpose   

This Chapter contains rules and regulations of general applicability to the administrative 
operations, formal proceedings, and informal proceedings of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 

 
777:1-1-3. Authority, interpretation, and severability of rules  

These rules are adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Charter Schools Act and the 
Administrative Procedures Act. Should a court of competent jurisdiction or the Attorney General of 
Oklahoma find any part of these rules to be inconsistent with the provisions of law as they presently exist 
or are hereafter amended, they shall be interpreted to comply with the statutes as they presently exist or 
are hereafter amended. The partial or total invalidity of any section of this Title shall not affect the valid 
sections. 
 
777:1-1-4. Organization   
(a)    Objectives. As the sole entity authorized to sponsor statewide virtual charter school programs in this 
state in accordance with the provisions of the Oklahoma Charter Schools Act, the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board shall be charged with establishing any rules, policies, and procedures necessary to 
regulate operation of statewide virtual charter schools and to ensure that free appropriate public education 
and related services are provided to statewide virtual charter school students enrolled in statewide virtual 
charter schools in a manner that is safe, consistent, effective, and appropriate. 
(b)    Staff. Subject to the availability of funding, the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board may 
maintain such staff as is authorized by law and as necessary to fulfill the duties set forth by Oklahoma 
statutes and regulations. 
(c)    Hours of operation. The official hours of operation of the principal office of the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board shall be the same as the hours of operation of the State Department of Education, 
and shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays. 
 
777:1-1-5. Time computation   
      Any period of time prescribed by this Title shall be calculated in accordance with the following 
provisions: 

(1)    The day of the act or event from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not 
be included. 
(2)    The last day of the period so computed shall be included, unless: 

(A)    The last day falls on a Saturday, a Sunday, or a legal holiday as defined by the 
Oklahoma Statutes, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day which is 
not a Saturday, a Sunday, or a legal holiday as defined by the Oklahoma Statutes; or 
(B)    The last day falls on any other day when the administrative office of the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board does not remain open for public business until 4:30 p.m., in 
which event the period runs until the end of the next day when the receiving office does 
remain open for public business until 4:30 p.m. 

 
777:1-1-6. Records requests  

(a) Custodian of records. The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board may designate a records 
custodian. In absence of a records custodian designated by the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board, the records custodian of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall be deemed to 
be the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 
 

3



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

2 
 

(b)    Procedure for records requests. Any individual or group seeking access to public records 
maintained by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board (the "Requester") shall submit a request to the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board records custodian, by fax, email, regular mail or in person. In 
order to provide prompt, reasonable access to records, to ensure that records requests are accurately 
communicated to the records custodian, and to enable the records custodian to accurately process the 
request, the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board recommends that all records requests be submitted in 
writing. In addition, all records requests must comply with all of the following provisions: 

(1)    All records requests must include: 
(A)    Identification of the individual and/or entity making the request; 
(B)    If the Requester is an entity rather than an individual, a name of a contact 
authorized to communicate with the records custodian on behalf of the Requester; 
(C)    Sufficient contact information at which the Requester may be contacted by the 
records custodian to comply with the records request procedures set forth in this Section; 
(D)    A description of the records requested with sufficient detail necessary to enable the 
records custodian to reasonably identify whether records responsive to the request exist; 
(E)    Whether the Requester seeks copies of any or all of the records requested and if so, 
whether the Requester seeks certified copies of any or all of the records requested; and 
(E)    If the Requester claims the public interest exemption from search fees in 
accordance with the provisions of (d) of this Section, all information necessary for the 
records custodian to determine the applicability of the exemption. 

(2)    An Open Records Act request form is provided on the website of the Board or the OSDE 
and the form may be submitted by email, fax, or regular mail via the addresses stated on the form. 
The form may also be obtained by writing to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board, at its  
principal office. 
(3)    Requests submitted to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board will not be deemed to  

          have been received unless and until the request has been identified as a request properly filed in 
accordance with the provisions of the Oklahoma Open Records Act at 51 O.S. § 24A.1 et seq. and 
the procedures set forth in this Section. 
(4)    Within a prompt and reasonable time of the date of receipt of the request, the records 
custodian shall review the request, seek any additional information from the Requester necessary 
to clarify the request, and shall ascertain whether any records responsive to the request exist. 
(5)    In addition, the records custodian shall promptly notify the Requester of the following: 

(A)    Whether the request complies with the provisions of this Section and the provisions 
of the Open Records Act; 
(B)    Whether records responsive to the request exist, and if so, instruct the Requester to 
confirm the record custodian's interpretation of the request; 
(C)    If records responsive to the request exist and require an additional search of data 
necessary to identify and/or locate individual records of persons, whether the search will 
incur any fees and costs pursuant to (d) of this Section and if so, an estimate of search 
fees; 
(B)    If the Requester asks to be provided copies of the requested records in lieu of or in 
addition to inspection, an estimate of the costs of copying the records requested as 
necessary to deliver the responsive records to the Requester; 
(C)    That processing of the request will not begin until any applicable records search 
fees and costs of copying have been received by the agency; and 
(D)    In the event the actual costs of copying and/or certification of records exceed the 
estimate provided and the amount of payment actually received from the Requester, that 
payment of any balance due from the Requester may be required prior to delivery of the 
requested records. 

(6)    All records requests will be deemed to have been received and processing of the request will 
begin when one of the following conditions is met: 

4



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

3 
 

(A)  If payment of search fees or copying costs is required, upon receipt of 
(i)    The fees and costs due; and 
(ii)    Receipt of any additional information necessary from the Requester to 
clarify and/or process the request; or 

(B)   If payment of search fees or copying costs is not required, upon receipt by the 
records custodian of: 

(i)    The Requester's confirmation of the request required by (5)(B) of this 
subsection; and 
(ii)    Receipt of any additional information necessary from the Requester to 
clarify and/or process the request. 

(7)   Any request not confirmed by receipt of the requisite search fee within thirty (30) calendar 
days of the written notification set forth in (5) of this subsection shall be deemed to be 
abandoned, unless, within the time stated, the Requester can show cause why the confirmation 
should be delayed or postponed. 
(8)   If the Requester fails to furnish additional information reasonably necessary to identify the 
records sought or otherwise enable agency personnel to accurately process the request, any 
further processing of the request may be suspended by the records custodian. A request that 
remains suspended for a period of forty-five (45) calendar days or more shall be deemed 
abandoned. 

(c)    Processing and response times. The agency will provide prompt, reasonable access to records in 
accordance with the requirements of 51 O.S. § 25A.5. The period of time considered prompt and 
reasonable is dependent upon a number of variable factors including, but not limited to: 

(1)    The scope and complexity of the request; 
(2)    Whether the workload of the agency or agencies necessary to respond to the request permits 
a response to the request without excessive disruption of essential services of the 
agency/agencies; 
(3)    Whether the records request includes: 

(A)   A sufficiently detailed description of the request by the requester necessary for the 
agency to ascertain the existence of records responsive to the request; 
(B)    Records or portions of records deemed confidential by state and/or federal law  
which must be removed or redacted in order to permit inspection of the records. 

(4)    Whether the Requester has requested copies of the records requested in addition to or in lieu 
of inspection of the records and if so, whether the Requester paid applicable fees and/or costs set 
forth in (b)(5) and (d) of this Section; 
(5)    Whether additional steps by the agency must be taken in order to ensure that inspection, 
copying, and/or response to the records can be provided without jeopardizing the integrity and 
organization of the records; and 
(6)    Whether student data is included within the scope of its request, and if so: 

(A)    Time necessary to de-identify and/or aggregate student data in accordance with the 
requirements of State and federal laws pertaining to confidentiality of records; or 
(B)   Time necessary to obtain any necessary approval of the State Board of Education in 
accordance with the requirements of the Student Data Accessibility, Transparency and 
Accountability Act of 2013 at 70 O.S. § 3-168 and accompanying regulations. 

(d)     Fees for record searches and copies of records. Fees and costs associated with record searches 
and providing copies of records shall be determined in accordance with the following procedures: 

(1)   Fees to recover reasonable and direct costs of record searches. Requests for individual 
records of persons that are either solely for commercial purposes or requests that cause an 
excessive disruption of the essential functions of the agency are subject to fees for recovery of the 
reasonable, direct costs of record searches. However, requesters shall be exempted from search 
fees when the release of the requested records is in the public interest, including, but not limited 
to, release of records in response to requests from: 

5



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

4 
 

(A)   News media; 
(B)    Scholars; 
(C)    Authors; and 
(D)    Taxpayers seeking to determine whether those entrusted with the affairs of the 
government are honestly, faithfully, and competently performing their duties as public 
servants. 

(2)    Fees to recover reasonable and direct costs of record copies. Requests for records are 
subject to fees for recovery of the reasonable, direct costs of copying records and/or certification 
of each individual copy of a record. 

(A)    For purposes of this paragraph, "copying" of a record may include costs of: 
  (i)     Mechanical reproduction of a paper ("hard copy") record; or 
  (ii)    Conversion of a record into an electronic format (e.g., pdf). 

(B)    In no instance shall the fees per page fee for copying and/or certification of 
individual copies of documents exceed the amount set forth in 51 O.S. § 25A.5(3). 
(C)    The Board is authorized to periodically review and adjust the rates that will be 
charged for providing copies of records in accordance with the law. Those rates will 
include costs for record copies, document searches and transcript rates. The rates will be 
posted at principal office of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board and filed with 
the county clerk as required by law. 
(D)    All fees and/or costs shall be paid by the requester prior to delivery of the response 
to the request. All fees must be paid by check or money order. No cash will be accepted. 

 
777:1-1-7. Procedures for declaratory rulings  
(a)    Definitions. The following words and terms, when used in this Section, shall have the following 
meaning: 

(1)    "Declaratory ruling" shall mean an informal declaration as to the applicability of a rule or 
order in an individual case for the purpose of providing a petitioner with a definitive response to a 
question about an ambiguity in the law as necessary to allow a petitioner to ascertain legal 
obligations and comply accordingly. 

(b)    Petitions for declaratory ruling. Any person affected by a rule adopted by the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board set forth in this Title or an order issued by the Board may petition for a declaratory 
ruling as to the applicability of a specific rule or order in a specified set of circumstances involving 
petitioner. Petitions for a declaratory ruling shall be submitted in accordance with the following 
procedures: 

(1)    The petition must be in writing and submitted to the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board; 
(2)    The petition shall specifically identify the rule in question by citation to the Oklahoma 
Administrative Code; 
(3)    The petition shall pose the specific issue(s) to be answered by the Statewide Virtual Charter 
School Board; 
(4)    The petition shall state clearly and with specificity all factual and legal grounds in support 
of petitioner's interpretation of the rule or order and shall include: 

(A)    An allegation of all facts upon which the declaratory ruling is based; and 
(B)    Copies of all documentation cited by petitioner in support of petitioner's claim 
attached to the petition; 

(5)    The petition shall be signed by the petitioner or an authorized representative of the 
petitioner; and 
(6)    The petition shall state the name, address, telephone number, and email address of the 
petitioner or an authorized representative of petitioner at which all notices required by this 
Section shall be served. 
 

6



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

5 
 

(c)   Review of a petition for declaratory ruling. Upon receipt by the Board, the petition will be 
stamped to show the date of submission, and the Board shall promptly notify the petitioner, the agency's 
legal counsel, and any other interested parties of the date of the board meeting at which the petition has 
been set for initial review by the Board. The date set for initial review shall be at least ten (10) calendar 
days from the date of receipt of the petition by the Board. 
(d)   Initial review of petition. Upon preliminary review of the petition, the Board may take one of the 
following actions: 

(1)    The Board may consider the merits of the petition and issue a ruling at the meeting; 
(2)    The Board may dismiss the petition on one or more of the following grounds: 

(A)    The petition was not filed in accordance with the requirements of this Section; or 
(B)    The request for a declaratory ruling stated in the petition is more appropriately 
handled through the agency rulemaking process in accordance with the provisions of the 
Administrative Procedures Act; or 

(3)    The Board may order a hearing on the matter and specify a date at which petitioner, counsel 
for the agency and any other individuals or entities deemed interested parties by the Board may 
present oral argument on the issues raised in the petition. The Board shall prescribe the amount of 
time allotted for oral argument. 

(e)   Declaratory ruling. At the conclusion of the presentation of the matter, the Board may render a 
decision on the petition or continue the meeting for further deliberation at a later date. Upon rendering a 
decision, a written decision memorializing the Board's decision shall be issued and signed by the 
Chairman of the Board, and a copy of the decision shall be mailed to Petitioner via certified mail within 
ten (10) calendar days of the date the decision is rendered. 
(f)    Judicial review. A declaratory ruling or refusal to issue such ruling, shall be subject to judicial 
review in the manner provided for review of decisions in individual proceedings set forth in the 
Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act at 75 O.S. §§ 317-323. 
 
777:1-1-8. Petitions for adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule  
(a)    Definitions. The following words and terms, when used in this Section, shall have the following 
meaning: 

(1)    "Rule" shall have the meaning set forth in the Administrative Procedures Act at 75 O.S. § 
250.3. 
(2)    "Rulemaking" shall have the meaning set forth in the Administrative Procedures Act at 75 
O.S. § 250.3. 
(3)    "Submission of a petition" shall mean receipt of a petition by the Board in accordance 
with the requirements of (b) of this Section. 

(b)    Petitions. Any person may initiate an informal proceeding for the purpose of requesting the Board 
to promulgate, amend, or repeal a rule in this Title. An informal proceeding to request rulemaking in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section shall be initiated by filing a petition in accordance with all 
of the following requirements: 

(1)    Petitions shall be submitted in writing and filed with the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board. The petition shall meet all of the following requirements: 

(A)    The petition shall state a description of the alleged necessity or basis for the 
requested change; 
(B)    The petition shall describe any potential conflicts with any existing statute or 
regulation that would result from the proposed rulemaking action requested; 
(C)    The petition shall include citations to all statutory provisions, if any, which provide 
authority for the Board to promulgate, amend, or repeal the rule; 
(D)    The petition shall be signed by the petitioner or an authorized representative of the 
petitioner; and 
(E)    The petition shall state the name, address, telephone number, and email address of 
the petitioner or an authorized representative of petitioner. 

7



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

6 
 

(2)    Upon receipt by the Board, the petition will be stamped to show the date of submission, and 
the Board shall review the petition for compliance with all of the provisions of this Section. If the 
petition complies with all provisions of (b) of this Section, the Board may set the petition for 
consideration by the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board, or at a subsequent meeting if 
the petition is not received until after the agenda for the next meeting has already been set. 

(c)    Review and consideration of petitions. Petitions for adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section shall be considered by the Board in accordance with the 
following provisions: 

(1)    If the Board approves further consideration of the proposed change, the decision shall be 
reflected in the meeting minutes of the Board. Within five (5) business days of the date of the 
meeting, written notification will be mailed to petitioner that such proposal will be formally 
considered for adoption, amendment, or repeal, provided that the process for rule adoption, 
amendment, or repeal shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the 
Administrative Procedures Act. 
(2)    In the event the Board determines that the proposal or request should not receive further 
consideration, the decision shall be reflected in the minutes of the Board. Within five (5) business 
days of the date of the meeting, written notification of the denial of the petition will be mailed to 
petitioner. 
(3)    In the event the Board fails to decide whether or not to take action on the petition within 
thirty (30) days of the date of submission of the petition, the petition shall be deemed to have 
been denied in accordance with the provisions of 75 O.S. § 305. 

 
777:1-1-9. Individual proceedings   
(a)    Definitions. The following words and terms, when used in this subchapter, shall have the following 
meaning: 

(1)    "Board" shall mean the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 
(2)    "Individual proceeding" shall have the meaning set forth in the Administrative Procedures 
Act at 75 O.S. § 250.3. 

(b)    Computation of time. Any period of time prescribed pursuant to the provision of this rule shall be 
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act at 70 O.S. § 250.8. 
(c)    Petitions. An individual proceeding shall be initiated by filing a petition with the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board. The petition shall meet all of the following requirements: 

(1)    The Petition must include: 
(A)    A statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the petitioner seeks 
to initiate the proceeding and the hearing is to be held; 
(B)    A reference to each particular statute and/or rule involved; 
(C)    A short and plain statement of the allegations asserted; and 
(D)    A statement or description of the request for the relief petitioner seeks from the 
Board. 

(2)    The Petition must clearly identify the petitioner(s) and be signed by the petitioner or counsel 
for the petitioner. 

(d)    Informal disposition. Nothing in this Section shall prevent informal disposition of a petition from 
being made by stipulation, agreed settlement, consent order, or default, unless otherwise precluded by 
law. In the event of an informal disposition of a petition, written notice signed by each party or counsel 
representatives shall be delivered to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board prior to the time of the 
scheduled hearing. 
(e)    Right to counsel. All parties to an individual proceeding shall have the right to representation by 
legal counsel in accordance with the provisions of 75 O.S. § 310. The Board may be represented by its 
own counsel, or, if deemed necessary by the Chairperson of the Board, a request may be made of the 
Attorney General to provide counsel to the Board to rule on questions of admissibility of evidence, 
competency of witnesses, and any other questions of law. In the event that counsel is not requested from 

8



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

7 
 

the Attorney General, the Chairperson of the Board or a hearing officer appointed by the Board will rule 
on the evidence, competency of the witnesses and other questions of law. 
(f)    Entry of appearance. All parties or attorneys representing parties in an individual proceeding shall 
file an entry of appearance. The entry of appearance shall constitute the address of record for the party at 
which all documents in the individual proceedings will be served. The entry of appearance shall meet all 
of the following requirements: 

(1)    The case caption of the individual proceeding; 
(2)    The name and signature of the party or parties entering an appearance in the individual 
proceeding; and 
(3)    The mailing address, telephone, fax number and e-mail address of the party or parties 
entering an appearance in the individual proceeding or, if represented by counsel: 

(A)    The name and signature of the attorney or attorneys entering an appearance in the 
individual proceeding on behalf of the party or parties; 
(B)    The name of the law firm of the attorney(s), if any; and 
(C)    The Oklahoma Bar Association number of the attorney(s). 

(g)    Motions. All requests for action in an individual proceeding before the Board shall be made in the 
form of a motion. Motions shall be filed with the Board, and shall comply with all of the following 
requirements: 

(1)    The motion must clearly and specifically state: 
(A)    The facts upon which the request is based; 
(B)    All legal grounds in support of the request; and 
(C)    The action or relief sought. 

(2)    The motion must be signed by the movant or counsel for the movant; 
(3)    The motion must include the name and contact information of record of the movant or 
counsel for the movant; and 
(4)    The motion must be timely served upon all parties to the proceeding and shall include a 
certificate of service that complies with the provisions of (h)(3) of this Section. 

(h)    Service. Methods of service and proof of service of any notice, pleading, order, or other document 
required by this Section shall comply with the following provisions: 

(1)    Methods of service. Service of any notice, pleading, or order required by this Section shall 
be made by one of the following methods: 

(A)    By personal delivery, served by a person licensed to make service of process in 
civil cases; 
(B)    By certified mail with delivery shown by return receipt. Service by certified mail 
shall be effective on the date of receipt or, if refused, on the date refusal by the 
Respondent. Acceptance or refusal by any officer of a business or an authorized agent for 
a business shall constitute acceptance or refusal by the party addressed; 
(C)    By publication if it is shown that service cannot be made by any other means 
despite the exercise of due diligence; or 
(D)    Any other method authorized by 12 O.S. § 2005(B). 

(2)    Proof of service. Proof of service of any petition to initiate an individual proceeding shall 
be filed with the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. Acknowledgment in writing of the 
document by the recipient, or appearance by the recipient at a hearing without objection to 
service, shall be considered proof of service. 
(3)    Certificates of service. All documents filed with the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board in a pending individual proceeding and all documents requiring service in accordance with 
the provisions of this Section shall include a Certificate of Service that meets all of the following 
requirements: 

(A)    The Certificate of Service shall state "I hereby certify that on this _____day of 
_______, ______, a copy of the foregoing document was mailed, postage prepaid, to:" 
and shall identify the name and address of all parties to whom the document was served. 

9



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

8 
 

(B)    The Certificate of Service shall be signed by the party or counsel for the party 
charged with service of the document. 

(i)    Formal hearing procedures. A hearing on a petition shall be conducted by the Chairman of the 
Board or the hearing officer in accordance with 75 O.S. § 310 and the following procedures: 

(1)    Date of hearing. When a petition is filed, the Board shall promptly set the petition for 
hearing. Notice of the hearing shall comply with the requirements of 75 O.S. § 309. At the 
hearing, the Board may choose to consider evidence and arguments in support of or in opposition 
to the petition, the Board may set the matter for further hearing. 
(2)    Appointment of a hearing officer. The Chairman of the Board shall preside over any 
hearing conducted in an individual proceeding in accordance with the provisions of this Section. 
Alternatively, the Board, at its discretion, may utilize a hearing officer to conduct the hearing. If 
utilized, the hearing officer shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board upon a vote of the 
majority of the members of the Board. 
(3)    Continuances. Any party to the proceeding may request a continuance of the scheduled 
hearing in accordance with the following provisions: 

(A)    A party may request to continue a hearing scheduled in an individual proceeding by 
filing a motion for continuance with the Board. The motion for continuance shall meet all 
of the following requirements: 

(i)    The motion shall comply with all of the requirements of (g) of this Section; 
and 
(ii)    The motion shall be filed at least five (5) business days prior to the 
scheduled hearing date, provided that this time requirement may be waived by 
the Board or hearing officer for good cause shown by the movant. 

(B)    The Board may continue a scheduled hearing by submitting written notification to 
all parties via certified mail, return receipt requested, or by electronic mail at least five 
(5) business days prior to the date of the scheduled hearing, provided that the time 
requirement may be waived by the Board or the hearing officer for good cause shown by 
the Board or counsel for the Board. 
(C)    If a motion for continuance is unopposed and the Board finds good cause for 
granting the motion, counsel for the Board shall prepare and sign a continuance order. 
The continuance order shall be filed with the Board and served in accordance with the 
requirements of (h) of this Section. 
(D)    If a motion for continuance is opposed, the non-moving party shall file a motion 
opposing the continuance stating all factual and legal grounds for denial of the motion. 
The Board or the hearing officer shall issue an order concerning the motion as soon as 
possible prior to the hearing. The order shall be filed with the Board, and copies of the 
order served in accordance with the provisions of (h) of this Section and by email if 
possible. 

(4)    Discovery and subpoenas. The Board or the hearing officer may require parties to an 
individual proceeding to attend discovery when necessary and appropriate for prompt 
adjudication of an individual proceeding conducted in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section. Discovery shall be conducted in accordance with 75 O.S. § 315 and the following 
provisions: 

(A)    Depositions. The parties, upon notice may take depositions of witnesses in the 
same manner prescribed for depositions in civil actions in the district courts of the State 
of Oklahoma. The depositions may be admitted into evidence by the Board or the hearing 
officer in the same manner as other evidence. Costs of depositions shall be borne by the 
deposing party. 
(B)    Subpoenas. Subpoenas for the attendance of a witness or for production of 
evidence may be issued in accordance with the following provisions: 
 

10



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

9 
 

(i)    Issuance of a subpoena. The Chairman of the Board or the hearing 
examiner may direct the Board to issue a subpoena upon the motion of a party. 
The signature of the Executive Director shall be sufficient authentication for 
issuance of any subpoena. A motion for issuance of a subpoena shall comply 
with the provisions of (h) of this Section and shall be filed with sufficient time to 
permit service of the subpoena at least five (5) business days prior to the hearing 
at which the attendance of the witness or ten (10) business days prior to the date 
production of records is required. 
(ii)    Service of a subpoena. Subpoenas shall be served in any manner 
prescribed for service of a subpoena in a civil action in the district courts of the 
State of Oklahoma. 
(iii)    Objections to and compliance with subpoenas. Any party to the 
proceeding may move to quash a subpoena or subpoenas duces tecum issued in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section, provided that, prior to quashing a 
subpoena or subpoenas duces tecum the agency shall give notice to all parties. A 
subpoena or subpoenas duces tecum may not be quashed if any party objects. 
(iv)    Enforcement of subpoenas. Upon the failure of any person to obey a 
subpoena, or upon the refusal of any witness to be sworn or make an affirmation 
or to answer a question put to her or him in the course of any individual 
proceeding, the Board shall consider the issue of enforcement of the subpoena as 
soon as convenient. By resolution, the Board may direct initiation of appropriate 
judicial proceedings necessary to enforce the subpoena. Meanwhile, the hearing 
or other matters shall proceed, so far as is possible, but the Board or the hearing 
officer, at its discretion at any time may order a stay or continuance of the 
proceedings for such time as may be necessary to secure a final ruling in the 
compliance proceedings. 
(v)    Costs of issuance and service of subpoenas. The costs covering the 
issuance and service of subpoenas and all witness fees incurred on behalf of a 
party to the proceedings, other than the Board, shall be borne by the party on 
whose behalf they are incurred, provided that the Board in its final order may tax 
such costs to another party if justice so requires. 

(j)    Disqualification of a Board member or hearing officer. A Board member or hearing officer shall 
withdraw from any individual proceeding in which he or she cannot accord a fair and impartial hearing or 
consideration. Any party may request the disqualification on the ground of his or her inability to give a 
fair and impartial hearing by filing an affidavit promptly upon discovery of the alleged disqualification, 
stating with particularity the grounds upon which it is claimed that a fair and impartial hearing cannot be 
accorded. The issue shall be determined promptly by the Board, or if it affects a member of the Board, by 
the remaining members thereof, if a quorum. Upon the entry of an order of disqualification affecting a 
hearing officer, the Board shall either assign a replacement hearing officer, or conduct the hearing itself. 
Upon the entry of an order of disqualification affecting a Board member, the Governor immediately shall 
appoint a member pro tempore to sit in place of the disqualified member in that proceeding. 
(k)    Presentation and consideration of evidence. Presentation and consideration of evidence shall be 
conducted in accordance with the following procedures: 

(1)    Witness and exhibit lists. The parties to the hearing shall exchange witness and exhibit lists 
no later than five (5) business days prior to the hearing. 
(2)    Admissibility and consideration of evidence. The Board or hearing examiner may 
determine the order in which evidence shall be received and presented. Admission and 
consideration of evidence in an individual proceeding conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of this Section shall be conducted in accordance with the Administrative Procedures 
Act at 75 O.S. §§ 309 through 326 and the following provisions: 
 

11



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

10 
 

(A)    Official notice. The Board or hearing officer may take notice of judicially 
cognizable facts or of generally recognized technical or scientific facts within the 
specialized knowledge of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. The Board or 
hearing officer shall give notice to all parties, prior to, or at the hearing, of any facts of 
which it proposes to take official notice. Any party or her/his attorney may request that 
official notice be taken of any fact qualified for such notice by the statutes of this state. If 
such official notice is taken, it shall be stated in the record, and all parties shall have 
opportunity to contest and give evidence in rebuttal or derogation of the official notice. 
(B)    Exclusion of witnesses. A party may request the exclusion of witnesses to the 
extent and for the purposes stated in 12 O.S. § 2615. Exclusion of a witness shall not be 
considered a violation of the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act. 
(C)    Testimony of witnesses. All testimony of witnesses presented by parties shall be 
made under oath or affirmation. A party may conduct cross-examination of witnesses 
called by other parties. Witnesses may also be questioned by the Board or the hearing 
officer. 
(D)    Objections to evidence. Objections to evidence may be made and shall be included 
in the record of the proceedings. 
(E)    Documentary evidence and authentication. Documentary evidence may be 
received in the form of copies or excerpts. Parties may challenge the authenticity of any 
copies. Any part of the evidence may be received in written form, when a hearing will be 
expedited and the interests of the parties will not be prejudiced. 

(l)    Order of procedure. The order of procedure at the hearing shall be as follows: 
(1)    Opening statements by legal counsel of both parties; 
(2)    Presentation of evidence by both parties followed by cross-examination of witnesses, and 
questions by State Board members or the hearing officer; 
(3)    Closing arguments by legal counsel of both parties; and 
(4)    Submission of case to the Board or the hearing officer for decision. 

(m)    Dismissal of an action. Upon a hearing, if the petitioner fails to show a prima facie case for lack of 
sufficient evidence, the Board may dismiss the petition upon grounds of failure to prove sufficient facts in 
support of the petition or upon the recommendation of the hearing examiner on the same grounds. 
(n)    Deliberations and decisions. Deliberations by the Board or the hearing officer in an individual 
proceeding may be held in executive session pursuant to the provisions of the Open Meeting Act set forth 
at 25 O.S. § 307. 
(o)    Decision. Decisions shall be issued in accordance with the following procedures: 

(1)    After hearing all evidence, and all witnesses, the Board or, if applicable, the hearing officer, 
shall render a decision on the petition. 
(2)    The decision shall be announced at the conclusion of the hearing and notification of that 
decision shall be by certified or registered mail, restricted delivery with return receipt requested 
to the petitioner. 
(3)    If the petitioner fails to appear at the scheduled hearing without prior notification within the 
time frame to request a stay or continuance set forth in (i) of this Section and without a 
demonstration of good cause, or fails to prove the allegations by clear and convincing evidence, 
the petition shall be dismissed. 

(p)    Findings of fact and conclusions of law. After the decision is announced, but before issuance of 
the final order, if the Board has not heard the case or read the record of the individual proceeding, the 
Board or hearing officer shall provide the parties with an opportunity to prepare and submit proposed 
findings of fact and conclusions of law in accordance with the provisions of 75 O.S. § 311. After the 
parties have been given notice and an opportunity to file exceptions, present briefs and oral arguments to 
the proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law, the Board may take action to accept, reject, or 
modify the proposed Findings and Conclusions of the hearing officer. The Board shall render findings of 
fact and conclusions of law. All findings of fact made by the Board shall be based exclusively on the 

12



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

11 
 

evidence presented during the course of the hearing or previously filed briefs, (made a part of the record), 
of the testimony of witnesses taken under oath. 
(q)    Final order. As the final determination of the matter, the final order shall constitute the final agency 
order and shall comply with the requirements set forth at 75 O.S. § 312. If no motion for rehearing, 
reopening or reconsideration of the order is filed in accordance with (t) of this Section, the final agency 
order shall represent exhaustion of all administrative remedies. All final orders in an individual 
proceeding shall be in writing and made a part of the record. Final orders are to be issued and signed by 
the Chairperson of the Board or the hearing officer for transmission to the parties by the Board. Within 
five (5) business days of the date of issuance of the final order, parties shall be notified of a final order 
either personally or by certified mail, return receipt requested. Upon request, a copy of the order shall be 
delivered or mailed to each party and the party's attorney of record, if any. 
(r)    Communication with parties. Unless required for the disposition of ex parte matters authorized by 
law, the Chairperson and the members of the Board, the hearing officer, or the employees or the agents of 
the Board shall not communicate, directly or indirectly, in connection with any issue of fact, with any 
person or party, nor, in connection with any issue of law, with any party or his or her representative 
except upon notice and opportunity for all parties to participate. The Chairperson and members of the 
Board or their employees may communicate with one another and have the aid and advice of one or more 
personal assistants. Advice may also be secured from the Attorney General's office. 
(s)    Record of hearing. The record of the hearing shall be set forth in such form and detail as the 
Chairperson or the Board may direct. 

(1)    In accordance with the requirements of 75 O.S. § 309, the record shall include: 
(A)    All pleadings, motions, and intermediate rulings; 
(B)    Evidence received or considered during the individual proceeding; 
(C)    A statement of matters officially noticed; 
(D)    Questions and offers of proof, objections, and rulings thereon; 
(E)    Proposed findings and exceptions; 
(F)    Any decision, opinion, or report by the Board or a hearing officer presiding at the 
hearing; and 
(G)    All other evidence or data submitted to the Board or hearing officer in connection 
with their consideration of the case. 

(2)    The Board shall ensure that all proceedings, except for executive sessions, are electronically 
recorded. The recording shall be made and maintained in accordance with the requirements of 75 
O.S. § 309, and a copy shall be provided to any party to the proceeding upon request. The Board 
may, but is not required to direct the recording of a proceeding to be fully transcribed and have a 
copy of the transcript placed on file in the Board's office. Parties to the proceeding may have the 
proceedings transcribed by a court reporter at their own expense. 

(t)    Rehearing, reopening or reconsideration of an order. The ruling shall become final unless, within 
ten (10) calendar days of entry of the order of declaratory ruling, the petitioner files a written request for a 
reconsideration of the petition with the Board stating all grounds upon which the petitioner seeks 
reconsideration of the Board's ruling. A petition for rehearing, reopening, or reconsideration of an agency 
order issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall comply with the following procedures: 

(1)    A petition for rehearing, reopening or reconsideration of a final order must be filed with the 
Board within ten (10) days from the entry of the order. It must be signed by the party or his or her 
attorney, and must set forth with particularity the statutory grounds upon which it is based. 
However, a petition based upon fraud practiced by the prevailing party or upon procurement of 
the orders by perjured testimony or fictitious evidence may be filed at any time. All petitions for 
rehearing, reopening, or reconsideration will be considered and ruled upon as soon as the 
convenient conduct of the Board's business will permit. 
(2)    A petition for a rehearing, reopening, or reconsideration shall set forth the grounds for the 
request. The grounds for such a petition shall be either: 

(A)    Newly discovered or newly available evidence, relevant to the issues; 

13



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

12 
 

(B)    Need for additional evidence adequately to develop the facts essential to proper 
decision; 
(C)    Probable error committed by the Agency in the proceeding or in its decision such as 
would be grounds for reversal on judicial review of the order; 
(D)    Need for further consideration of the issues and the evidence in the public interest; 
or 
(E)    A showing that issues not previously considered ought to be examined in order to 
properly dispose of the matter. The grounds justifying the rehearing shall be set forth by 
the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board which grants the order, or in the petition of 
the individual making the request for the hearing. 

(3)    It is the burden of the party requesting a rehearing to notify the opposing party of the appeal. 
(4)    Upon receipt of a written request for reconsideration in accordance with this subsection, the 
request shall be set on the agenda for consideration by the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board at the next available regular meeting or at a subsequent regular or special meeting. 
Rehearing, reopening, or reconsideration of the matter may be heard by the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board or may be referred to a hearing officer. The hearing must be confined to 
those grounds on which the recourse was granted. 

(u)    Judicial review. Any person or party aggrieved or adversely affected by a final order in an 
individual proceeding, after the exhaustion of administrative remedies, is entitled to certain judicial 
review in accordance with the provisions of the Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act, and the 
procedures set forth therein shall govern appeals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

13 
 

CHAPTER 10. STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SUBCHAPTER 1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

    
777:10-1-2. Definitions   
    The following words and terms, when used in this Chapter, shall have the following meaning, unless 
the context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Charter school site" or "school site" or "statewide virtual charter school site"  
means the physical location of any facility or structure, leased or owned by the school, other than the legal 
residence of a student or the parent/legal guardian of a student, for use by a statewide virtual charter 
school to provide face-to-face or virtual instruction to students enrolled in the statewide virtual charter 
school. 

"Education service provider" means a for-profit education management organization, nonprofit 
charter management organization, or any other partner entity with which a charter public school contracts 
for educational program implementation or comprehensive management.  

"Face-to-face instruction" means any in-person tutoring, educational instruction, or any other 
activity provided by the statewide virtual charter school to an enrolled student for which the student's 
physical presence and/or participation is used by the charter school to earn credit for a virtual course, 
meet the instructional requirements of 70 O.S.§ 1-111 and/or counted toward the student's compulsory 
attendance requirements set forth at Art. 13, § 4 of the Oklahoma Constitution, 70 O.S. § 10-105, and/or 
accompanying regulations of the State Department of Education relating to student attendance. 

"Statewide virtual charter school" means any charter school sponsored by the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board in accordance with the requirements of the Oklahoma Charter Schools Act 
for the purpose of providing full-time virtual public school courses of instruction for Pre-K through 
twelfth (12th) grade students whose legal residence is located within the State of Oklahoma. 

"SVCSB" and "Board" means the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 
"OCAS" means the Oklahoma Cost Accounting System. 

   
777:10-1-3. School establishment requirements   
    By July 1 of the first year of operation, the school shall have in place the following: 

(1)    Purchased and implemented a state-approved school finance system; Every approved 
statewide virtual charter school must utilize a state-approved school finance system aligned with 
the Oklahoma Cost Accounting System (OCAS). The school must notify the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board of the name of the system being utilized by July 1 prior to the start of 
school. 
(2)    Purchased and implemented a state-approved student information system; Every approved 
statewide virtual charter school must utilize a state-approved student information system. The 
school must notify the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board of the name of the system being 
utilized by July 1 prior to the start of school. 
(3)    Established secured connectivity to state reporting systems; Every approved statewide 
virtual charter school must verify connections to state-reporting systems. The school must notify 
the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board of the name of the system being utilized by July 1 
prior to the start of school. 
(4)    Secured and occupy a public school administration facility. Every approved statewide 
virtual charter school must have a public site that allows the public to have access to the main 
office of the school. The school must notify the State Virtual Charter School Board of the 
location, address, contact information of the facility by July 1 prior to the start of the school, and 
during the year if the location of the site changes. Notification to the Statewide Virtual Charter 
School Board shall be through the online information gathering system set forth in 777:10-3-4. 
 
 

 

15



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

14 
 

777:10-1-4. Education service providers 
     Schools that contract with or otherwise utilize education service providers shall abide by the 
following: 

(1) The relationship of the charter school and an education service provider is that of a customer 
and vendor contractor. As such, the charter school and the education service provider shall be 
separate entities in all aspects.  

(2) The name of the education service provider shall not be the same or similar to the name of the 
charter school. Charter school/governing body email addresses shall not be connected to the 
same web domain as the education service provider or have the same email addresses as the 
education service provider. 

(3) All funds utilized to operate the charter school, including but limited to paying charter school 
employees, provide curriculum, technology, supplies and/or extra-curricular activities to 
students shall be maintained in charter school accounts and controlled by charter school 
employees. 

(4) All funds utilized by the education service provider to operate the school or educate students 
in any manner shall be maintained in school accounts, with records that are open to the public 
and subject to audit.  

(5) All fees charged by the education service provider shall be specifically listed in the 
management contract. Any amendments to the contract shall be provided to the sponsor.  

(6) All contracts shall be signed by the chairperson of the governing body, not the education 
service provider. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

15 
 

SUBCHAPTER 3.  STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL SPONSORSHIP 
 

777:10-3-1. Purpose   
    The rules in this subchapter set forth procedures for authorization and sponsorship of statewide virtual 
charter schools and requirements for contracts for sponsorship of statewide virtual charter schools, 
including procedures for renewal and termination of contracts for sponsorship of statewide virtual charter 
schools. 
 
777:10-3-3. Applications to sponsor statewide virtual charter schools; renewal and termination of 
contracts for sponsorship of statewide virtual charter schools   
(a)    Sponsorship application cycle and timelines. To ensure that timely processing, review, and 
consideration of applications for sponsorship occurs within the time periods specified by 70 O.S. § 3-134, 
and to ensure that the application process is completed with sufficient time for new schools to comply 
with all statutory reporting requirements for the beginning of the next school year, (e.g., statutory state 
finance reporting deadlines for state aid purposes) the timeline for the application cycle for the following 
school year is as follows: 

(1)    Completion of charter school training required by 70 O.S. § 3-134(A) prior to submission of 
letter of intent to submit an application; 
(2)    Submission of a full application for statewide virtual charter school sponsorship in January, 
eighteen (18) months prior to the first year of proposed operation; 
(3)    Public presentation of application/proposal for sponsorship at the next regularly scheduled 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board meeting; 
(4)    Review of application and recommendation by a team of experts in education; 
(5)    Statewide Virtual Charter School Board decision on application for sponsorship at a 
subsequent Board meeting; 
(6)    Submission of an amended application within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of 
notification of rejection; 
(7)    Board decision on amended application, if applicable, within thirty (30) calendar days of 
receipt of amended application; and 
(8)    Negotiation and execution of a contract for sponsorship. 

(b)    Sponsorship application requirements. In addition to meeting the requirements of 70 O.S. § 3-
134, new applications to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board for sponsorship of a statewide 
virtual charter school must include the following information in the sponsorship proposal: 

(1)    For initial consideration for sponsorship, every applicant shall submit a set of policies and 
procedures governing administration and operation of the proposed statewide virtual charter 
school. The policies and procedures governing administration and operation of the proposed 
statewide virtual charter school shall be incorporated into the terms of the contract of the virtual 
charter school, and shall include, but are not limited to, all of the following subject areas: 

(A)    Each of the following provisions required by 70 O.S. § 3-135: 
(i)    A description of the charter school program offered by the school which 
complies with the purposes outlined in 70 O.S. § 3-136; 
(ii)   Student admission and enrollment policies and procedures; 
(iii)  Management and administration of the charter school; 
(iv)   Requirements and procedures for program and financial audits; 
(v)    All of the requirements set forth in 70 O.S. § 3-136, including, but not 
limited to, compliance with all regulations of the State Department of Education 
pertaining to health, safety, civil rights and insurance and financial reporting and 
auditing requirements; 
(vi)   Assumption of liability by the charter school; and 
(vii)  Employment rights and personnel policies of the school required to be 
included in employee contracts pursuant to 70 O.S. § 3-135(B); 

17



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

16 
 

(B)    Duties and responsibilities of the charter school governing body; 
(C)    Student grade placement, promotion, retention, and graduation requirements; 
(D)    Use and maintenance of charter school property and facilities, including: 

(i)    Virtual provider technology protocols that ensure conformity to U.S. 
Sections 504 & 508 provisions for electronic and information technology, W3C’s 
Web Content Accessibility guidelines, and Oklahoma’s Information Technology 
Accessibility Standards to include minimum and recommended specifications for 
hardware, software, operating system, and Internet service, course delivery and 
technical support; 
(ii)   Facility safety and emergency and crisis management; 
(iii)  School calendar, sample daily schedule as applicable to online learning at 
proposed school, school instructional hours, school holidays, dismissals and 
closures, attendance requirements; and 

(E)    Contracts with prospective contractors, including but not limited to any education 
service providers, in which all fees are clearly articulated and explained. 
(E)(F)  Any other topics deemed necessary by the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board to assess the applicant's capability to administer and operate the charter school in 
compliance with all applicable provisions of federal and state laws and regulations to 
which charter schools are required to comply. 

(2)    Each applicant shall: 
(A)    Articulate the vision and purpose of the school. 
(B)    Articulate the mission of the school, specifying how the school will embrace and 
accomplish its vision and purpose. 
(C)    Describe the elements of the school program that align with and support the 
school's mission. 
(D)    Describe how the school will ensure education access and equity for all eligible 
students. 
(E)    Describe how the governing body and governing documents ensure that a 
functioning organization with competent governance will be sustained, including: 

(i)    lines of authority; 
(ii)   leadership roles and responsibilities; 
(iii)  proposed governing by-laws; 
(iv)  meeting schedules for governing body; 
(v)    a list of advisory bodies; 
(vi)   external organizations applicable to school management; 
(vii)  make-up of governing body, including proof of Oklahoma residency for a 
majority of Board members. 
(viii)  start up plan including a detailed listing and periodicity of academic, 
operational, and financial measures that it will report and by which it will 
evaluate its ongoing progress; 
(ix)    recruitment, hiring and personnel policies, professional and staff 
development and training, technology capacity, system accessibility, student 
records and data management, student recruitment policies and procedures, 
admission and enrollment policies and procedures (including minimum and 
maximum enrollment for each contract year and proposed school calendar and 
sample daily schedule), promotion and graduation policies and procedures, 
attendance policies and procedures, student conduct and discipline plan, school 
safety and emergency response plan, parent and family education and 
engagement plan;  
(x)   school effectiveness measurement criteria; and 
(xi)  location and description of school facilities. 

18



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

17 
 

(F)    Describe how the governing body will ensure a sound and stable financial condition 
for the school, including: 

(i)    description of the roles and responsibilities of the treasurer and financial 
officers, and how each  has demonstrated experience in school finance or the 
equivalent thereof; 
(ii)    financial policies, including financial controls, and compliance with audit 
requirements; 
(iii)    financial plan for the first five years of operation,; 
(iv)    start-up and five-year budgets and cash flow projections. The documents 
provided must account for the school's anticipated enrollment, as well as, a 
budget if the school only realizes a portion of the school's anticipated 
enrollment.; 
(v)    anticipated fundraising plan, if applicable; 
(vi)   insurance coverage/plan; and 
(vii)  verifiable proof of secured funds for each source of revenue, and 
documentation to support any agreement, donation or loan that supports the 
budget. 

 (G)    Describe how the governing body will ensure the delivery of a high-quality 
education program that meets academic performance for grade level and subject matter 
growth and, proficiency, and college career readiness, including: 

(i)    grade levels served; 
(ii)   plan for program delivery and program evaluation; 
(iii)  curriculum and instructional model, including learning environment, 
curriculum overview, curriculum materials, instructional strategies, equipment 
and technology requirements, alignment with Oklahoma academic standards, 
which must include historical data and evaluation of the selected curriculum and 
instructional model in Oklahoma and other states, accreditations earned, and 
NCAA course certification status (for high school courses only), 
(iv)    student assessment, including plan to measure and report student progress, 
and benchmarks for student learning, district/school assessments, Oklahoma 
School Testing Program; 
(v)    plan for support structures (e.g. online tutoring, home mentors, and 
technical support services in place 24x7) in addition to teacher support, 
(vi)   plan for support of diverse learners, (students at-risk for poor learning 
outcomes, academically behind learners, English language learners (ELL), and 
other students identified through testing and assessments as being in need of 
targeted remediation, intervention, and/or support); 
(vii)   co-curricular and extracurricular activities;  
(viii)  student performance; and 
(ix)    school culture. 

(H)    Include a concise plan that details expected school growth and how the school will 
evolve to meet the needs of school growth. 
(I)    Demonstrate the applicant's experience in pre-kindergarten through 12th grade 
school operation. 

(3)    Each applicant shall provide documentation of its school's ability to meet each of the 
following requirements specific to the virtual delivery of education services: 

(A)    That each statewide virtual charter school is adequately prepared to deliver services 
to all enrolled students on the school's first day of operation and for all required 
instructional hours for every school year through a stable virtual platform; 
(B)    That each statewide virtual charter school has consistent lawful procedures in place 
governing admission, transfers, enrollment, and withdrawal of students; 

19



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

18 
 

(C)    That each statewide virtual charter school has consistent lawful procedures in place 
governing admission, child find responsibilities, evaluation, and re-evaluation of students 
with disabilities, as well as applicable procedural safeguards and policies and procedures 
to ensure provision of free appropriate online and other educational and related services, 
supplementary aids and services, modifications, accommodations, supports for personnel, 
and other technical supports provided in the least restrictive environment to students with 
disabilities and/or other special needs in compliance with applicable federal and state 
laws and regulations, including: 

(i)    Students who require or may require individualized education programs 
pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA); and 
(ii)    Students who require or may require accommodations, regular or special 
education and related aids, or other services under a plan developed in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act; 

(D)    That each statewide virtual charter school has consistent procedures in place 
governing the admission, identification, evaluation, re-evaluation, parental notification, 
and provision of educational programs and services in compliance with applicable federal 
and state laws and regulations to students with special needs or unique abilities, 
including, but not limited to: 

(i)    Students who are English Language Learners/Limited English Proficient and 
who require services as necessary to overcome language barriers and ensure that 
they can participate meaningfully in the district's education programs; and 
(ii)    Students who meet the definition of "gifted and talented children" set forth 
in 70 O.S. § 1210.301; 

(E)    That each statewide virtual charter school complies with state and federal law in 
protection and handling of student records and data, including, but not limited to, 
protocols for secure storage and transmission of student records and data, parent/legal 
guardian access to student records and data and privacy of student records and data in 
compliance with all provisions of the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 
(FERPA) and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), and that the 
student records and data is exclusively the property of the school and the state of 
Oklahoma; 
(F)    That each statewide virtual charter school has consistent procedures and technology 
in place necessary to monitor and report student attendance, student participation in 
online school activities, and any necessary instruction in accordance with the 
requirements of state law; 
(G)    That each statewide virtual charter school has fair and consistent procedures in 
place to implement necessary and appropriate practices to promote and enforce student 
discipline that include sufficient due process protections for students facing accusations 
of conduct which may result in suspension and/or expulsion of a student; 
(H)    That each statewide virtual charter school has consistent procedures and technology 
in place to ensure delivery of services and that each virtual charter school provider has an 
adequate plan in place for communicating emergency procedures to students in the event 
of technical failures of equipment and/or loss of connectivity; 
(I)    That each statewide virtual charter school has consistent procedures and technology 
in place to ensure consistent and adequate communication with parents/guardians of 
students and provide student progress and academic reports to parents/guardians of 
students; and 
(J)    That each statewide virtual charter school has provided a full description and 
explanation of the grade levels in which the provider intends to provide instruction and, 
for each charter school that offers secondary level coursework for grades nine (9) through 

20



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

19 
 

twelve (12), whether the charter school will offer coursework as necessary to comply 
with the graduation requirements of 70 O.S. § 11-103.6 and accompanying regulations. 

(4)    Each applicant shall provide a written plan for compliance with all state and federal 
financial recording and reporting requirements for state and federal funds that are applicable to 
public school districts, including, but not limited to compliance with: 

(A)    The School District Transparency Act at 70 O.S. § 5-135.4 et seq.; 
(B)    The Oklahoma Public School Audit Law at 70 O.S. §22-101 et seq.; 
(C)    Annual itemized expenditure budget and request for appropriated funds and 
estimate of revenues required by 70 O.S. § 5-128.1; and 
(D)    Statutes and regulations pertaining to the Oklahoma Cost Accounting System 
(OCAS). 

(5)    Each application shall include a contact name, mailing address of record, phone number, 
and email address of the governing body at which all written notices required by 70 O.S. § 3-134 
shall be served. In the event that a change in contact information occurs during the application 
process, the governing body shall provide the Board with updated contact information in writing 
within five (5) business days of the date that the change occurs. 
 

(c)    Filing, review, approval, and denial of charter school applications for sponsorship. All 
applications for sponsorship shall be submitted by the governing body of the prospective charter school to 
the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board by filing an original and ten (10) five (5) copies, as well as an 
electronic version of the application with the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. Upon receipt of an 
application for sponsorship, the Board shall stamp the application to record the date of receipt, and shall 
promptly submit written confirmation of the receipt of the application to the contact name and address of 
record of the governing body listed on the application.  

(1)    Application format.  
(A)    The text and attachments shall use standard one-inch margins, be clearly paginated, 
and use a readable font not smaller in type than 11 point.  
(B)    A cover page shall be labeled Application for Initial Authorization and include the 
following information: 

(i)    Name of proposed school; 
(ii)   Address of proposed school; 
(iii)  Contact information: name, title, phone, email address;  
(iv)   Application submission date; and 
(v)    Name of applicant(s) and requested sponsor. 

(C)    A cover letter not to exceed two pages shall provide a brief overview of the 
proposed school. 
(D)    A clearly labeled table of contents shall be included setting forth all major sections 
(Foundation for the School Charter, Organizational Capacity, Financial Management, 
Education Program and Performance, Growth Plan), appendices, and page numbers. 
(E)    Tables, graphs, and other data provided in the application shall be clearly presented 
and explained and shall be relevant to the text. 
(F)    The application shall include signed and notarized statements from the Head of the 
School and the governing body members, as applicable, showing their agreement to fully 
comply as an Oklahoma public charter school with all statute, regulations, and 
requirements of the United States of America, State of Oklahoma, Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board, and Oklahoma Department of Education. Specifically cite 
agreement to abide by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act and the Oklahoma Open Records 
Act, and to guarantee access to education and equity for all eligible students regardless of 
their race, ethnicity, economic status, academic ability, or other factors as established by 
law.  In addition, the head of school and governing body members, as applicable, will 
guarantee to establish the components necessary to begin school operations in the State of 

21



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

20 
 

Oklahoma on July 1 of the first year, including a public administration facility, state-
approved school financial system, state-approved student information system, and 
secured applicable connections to state reporting systems. 
 (G)    The application shall include documentation of applicant's completion of charter 
school training. 

 (2)    Initial review and recommendation. Prior to consideration of the application by the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board, a review panel may be formed by the Executive Director 
for the purpose of developing a recommendation on the application to the Board for 
consideration. The panel, chaired by the Executive Director, may include representatives with 
expertise in the area of accountability, online education, school governance, accreditation, 
education services, technology, school finance, federal programs, education law, curriculum, 
instruction, special education, and student information. 
(3)    Application review and criteria. In reviewing an application for sponsorship of a statewide 
virtual charter school, the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall determine whether the 
applicant's proposal for sponsorship complies with the provisions of 70 O.S. § 3-134 and other 
applicable provisions of the Oklahoma Charter Schools Act. In addition, the Board may consider 
any other factors demonstrating the applicant's capacity to successfully comply with the goals set 
forth in its vision and mission statements and applicable state, federal, tribal and/or local statutes 
and regulations. Such factors may include, but are not limited to the following: 

(A)    Whether the applicant can demonstrate previous experience in operation of one or 
more successful virtual charter schools; 

(i)    If the applicant cannot demonstrate previous experience in operation of one 
or more successful virtual charter schools, whether applicant has sufficient 
resources in place to ensure compliance with applicable state, federal, tribal 
and/or local statutes and regulations. 
(ii)    If the applicant can demonstrate previous experience in operation of a one 
or more successful virtual charter schools, whether applicant has a history of 
non-compliance with applicable state, federal, tribal and/or local statutes and 
regulations either in the State of Oklahoma or in other jurisdictions. 

(B)    Whether the applicant has provided evidence demonstrating financial stability in 
the pre-launch and operational years of the proposed school; 
(C)    Whether the criteria designed to measure the effectiveness of the charter school 
proposed by the applicant is reasonably calculated to provide accurate benchmarks for 
evaluation of teacher effectiveness and student learning; and 
(D)    Whether the charter school has adequate human resources, facilities, systems, and 
structures in place as necessary to evaluate the needs of and provide effective services to 
students with disabilities, English Language Learners, and gifted and talented students. 

(4)    Acceptance or denial of sponsorship applications. The Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board shall review and consider the application in accordance with the timeline established 
pursuant to (a) of this Section, provided that a final decision on the application shall be made no 
later than ninety (90) calendar days from the date of receipt of the application by the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board. The Board shall promptly submit written notification of the 
decision of the Board, including reasons for rejection of the application, if applicable, to the 
applicant via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address of record of the governing 
body designated on the application.  In addition, the governing body chairperson shall be notified 
via electronic mail. 
(5)    Reconsideration of sponsorship applications. In the event of a denial of an application for 
sponsorship, the applicant may submit a revised application for reconsideration in accordance 
with the following procedures: 

(A)    The revised application for reconsideration shall be filed with the Board within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the date of receiving notification of the rejection. The 

22



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

21 
 

revised application shall meet all of the application requirements set forth in this Section. 
In the event that delivery of written notification required by paragraph (2) of this 
subsection is refused by the applicant or returned as undeliverable due to the applicant's 
failure to update the contact of record in accordance with the requirements of (b)(4) of 
this Section, the date of receipt of notification of the rejection shall be considered the date 
of the meeting at which the Board took action on the proposed application. 
(B)    Within five (5) business days of the date of receipt of the application for 
reconsideration, the Board shall promptly set the application for consideration at a 
meeting of the Board and submit notification of the date, time, and place of the meeting 
to the applicant to the contact of record. The meeting to consider the application shall 
occur within thirty calendar (30) days of the date of receipt of the application. 
(C)    The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall take action to accept or reject the 
revised application within thirty calendar (30) days of its receipt by the Board. 

(6)    Appeal of denial of sponsorship applications. The procedures for filing appeals to the 
State Board of Education shall be governed by 70 O.S. § 3-145.3 and the policies and rules 
adopted by the State Board of Education, with a copy of the appeal mailed to the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board. 

(d)    Requirements of the sponsorship contract. Contracts for sponsorship between the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board and the governing body of a statewide virtual charter school shall include 
terms that meet all of the following requirements: 

(1)    The contract shall incorporate the provisions of the charter of the school in accordance with 
the requirements of 70 O.S. § 3-135, and the charter shall comply with the provisions of 70 O.S. § 
3-136. 
(2)    The contract shall contain terms addressing all of the requirements set forth in 70 O.S. § 3-
135. 
(3)    The contract shall contain terms setting forth measurable goals and objectives for student 
performance. 
(4)    The contract shall contain terms specifying standards for fiscal accounting and management 
that ensure the compliance of the charter school with all applicable provisions of state and federal 
statutes and regulations pertaining to requests for appropriations and recording and reporting 
receipt and expenditures of public funds, including, but not limited to: 

(A)    Terms providing that the charter school shall conduct annual financial audits in 
accordance with the requirements of the Oklahoma Public School Audit Law; 
(B)    Terms providing that the charter school shall comply with all State Department of 
Education deadlines necessary for budgeting, calculation of appropriations and/or 
disbursements of state aid and/or federal aid; 
(C)    Terms providing that the charter school shall comply with all deadlines for 
recording and reporting of state aid revenue and expenditures; 
(D)    Terms providing that the charter school shall comply with all requirements of the 
Oklahoma Cost Accounting System (OCAS);  
(E)    Terms providing that the charter school shall comply with all provisions of the 
School District Transparency Act at 70 O.S. § 5-135.4 et seq; 
(F)   Terms providing that the charter school will provide any and all records of the 
school including, but not limited to, financial records upon request by the sponsor;  
(G)   Terms providing that the charter school will provide any and all school records 
including, but not limited to, financial records from of education service providers upon 
request by the sponsor; 
(H)   Terms providing that the school is subject to requests for audit by the State 
Auditor's office;  
 
 

23



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

22 
 

 
(I)     Terms providing that the charter school shall adopt a viable conflict of interest 
policy and a code of ethics including specific prohibitions against self-dealing, for the 
governing body of the charter school, the Head of School, all school employees, and 
contractors/vendors as it relates to their interactions and relationships with the 
aforementioned; 
(J)    Terms providing that the charter school submit three data-driven goals and 
measurement criteria, including one non-academic goal, and included in the Performance 
Framework. 

(5)    The policies and procedures governing administration and operation of the statewide virtual 
charter school shall be incorporated into the terms of the contract.  
(6)    The term of the initial contract shall be effective for five (5) years from the first day of 
operation in accordance with the provisions of 70 O.S. § 3-137. 
(7)    The term of the contract shall designate at least one contact name and address of record of 
the governing body of the charter school to which all notices required by the terms of the contract 
and/or this Section shall be served, including the name, title, mailing address, email address, and 
phone number of all individual(s) authorized to receive service of notices required by this Section 
and pursuant to the terms of the contract.  
(8)    The contract shall contain any other terms necessary to ensure compliance with applicable 
provisions of state and/or federal law. 

(e)    Renewals of contracts for sponsorship of statewide virtual charter schools. Renewal of a 
contract with a statewide virtual charter school sponsored by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board 
shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Oklahoma Charter Schools Act. 

(1)     Requests for renewal of contract for sponsorship. Requests for renewal of the contract 
for sponsorship shall be submitted by the governing body of the charter school in accordance with 
the following procedures: 

(A)    At least one (1) year prior to expiration of the initial contract term, but no earlier 
than eighteen (18) months prior to the date of expiration of the contract; the governing 
body of the charter school may submit a proposal for renewal of the contract to the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board by filing an original and seven (7) five (5) 
copies, as well as an electronic version of the proposal with the Board. 
(B)    The Board shall schedule the request for renewal as an item on the agenda for the 
next regular meeting of the Board, or at a subsequent meeting if the proposal for renewal 
is not received until after the agenda for the next meeting has already been set. The Board 
shall timely submit written notice of the date, time, and location of the meeting at which 
the proposal for renewal will be considered and/or heard by regular mail to the governing 
body of the charter school at the address of record set forth in the sponsorship contract. In 
addition, the Board may send a courtesy copy of the notice by facsimile, and/or email. If 
the Board will act on the proposal for renewal at a subsequent meeting of the Board, 
similar notice of such meeting shall be sent to the governing body of the charter school. 
(C)    The Board shall review the proposal for renewal and take action on the request for 
renewal no later than eight (8) months prior to the date of expiration of the contract. 
(D)    The Board may base its decision to deny the charter school governing body's 
request for renewal upon any of the grounds for nonrenewal or termination set forth in 70 
O.S. § 3-137 and/or (f)(1) of this Section. 

(2)    Format for renewal application. The renewal application shall include: 
(A)    Text and attachments using standard one-inch margins, clearly paginated, and using 
a readable font not smaller in type than 11 point. 
(B)    A cover page labeled Application for Reauthorization, including the following 
information: 

(i)    Name of school; 

24



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

23 
 

(ii)   Address of school; 
(iii)  Contact information: name, title, phone, email address; 
(iv)   Date application approved by governing body; and 
(v)    Application submission date. 

(C)    A cover letter no more than two pages in length providing a brief overview of the 
school's mission, design elements, and major challenges and accomplishments over the 
term of the current contract. 
(D)    A clearly labeled table of contents setting forth all major sections, appendices, and 
page numbers. 
(E)    Clearly labeled attachments provided in the appendix. 
(F)    Clearly labeled tables, graphs, and other data provided in this application in addition 
to an explanation of their relevance to the text. 
(G)    A signed and notarized statement from the Head of the School and the governing 
body members, as applicable, showing their consideration and approval of the 
reauthorization application and their agreement to fully comply, as an Oklahoma public 
charter school with all statute, regulations, and requirements of the United States of 
America, State of Oklahoma, Statewide Virtual Charter School Board, and Oklahoma 
Department of Education. Specifically cite agreement to abide by the Oklahoma Open 
Meeting Act and the Oklahoma Open Records Act, and to guarantee access to education 
and equity for all eligible students regardless of their race, ethnicity, economic status, 
academic ability, or other factors.  
(H)    A single page entitled Introduction to the School containing, at a minimum, the 
following list of information: 

(i)     Name of school; 
(ii)    Location of School; 
(iii)   Year Opened; 
(iv)    Year Renewed, if applicable; 
(v)     Maximum enrollment; 
(vi)    Current enrollment; 
(vii)   Grade span; 
(viii)  Most recent accountability report information from the State of Oklahoma; 
(ix)    Attendance rate; 
(x)     Graduation rate; 
(xi)    Recurrent enrollment;  
(xii)   Dropout rate;  
(xiii)  Percentage of at-risk students enrolled; and 
(xiv)  Any other information the school deems necessary to include. 

(3)    Information in renewal request.  
(A)     In addition to the information found in the performance report, and the school's 
response to the performance report, if any, this reauthorization application is the school's 
opportunity to address each of the following components highlighting what the school 
believes is most important in each area: 
 (i)    Faithfulness to the foundation of the charter; 

(ii)   Organizational capacity; 
(iii)  Financial management; 
(iv)   Education program and performance; and 
(v)    Strategic planning. 

(B)   Appendices.  Provide documents and related information for the term of the contract 
beyond those provided in the performance report and response, including examples of 
community and parent support of the school. 
 

25



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

24 
 

 
(4)   Performance report and site visit. The sponsor of the school will issue a school 
performance report in accordance with State statute. The school shall have forty-five (45) 
calendar days to respond to the performance report and submit any corrections or clarifications 
for the report. In evaluating a school's renewal request, the Board may consider the performance 
report, results of a site visit, and evidence provided in the school's presentation to the Board.  
(5)   Notice of intent of non-renewal of contract for sponsorship. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of paragraph (1) of this subsection, the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board may 
elect to not renew a contract for sponsorship in accordance with the following procedures: 

(A)    No later than eight (8) months prior to the date of expiration of the contract. The 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall submit written notice of its intent of non-
renewal via certified mail, return receipt requested to the governing body of the charter 
school at the address of record set forth in the contract. In addition, the governing body 
chairperson shall be notified via electronic mail.  The notice shall include: 

(i)    A statement of any and all factual and legal grounds upon which the Board's 
intent to non-renew the contract is based; and 
(ii)    A statement of the date, time, and location of the meeting at which the 
Board intends to take action on the proposed non-renewal, which shall be held no 
earlier than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the notice of intent to non-
renew the contract is sent to the charter school. 

(B)    The Board may base its decision to non-renew the contract for sponsorship upon 
any of the grounds for nonrenewal or termination set forth in 70 O.S. § 3-137 and/or 
(f)(1) of this Section. 
(C)    The procedures for filing appeals to the State Board of Education shall be governed 
by 70 O.S. § 3-145.3 and the policies and rules adopted by the State Board of Education, 
with a copy of the appeal mailed to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 

(f)    Terminations of contracts for sponsorship of statewide virtual charter schools. The Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board may terminate the contract with a statewide virtual charter school in 
accordance with the following procedures: 

(1)    Grounds for termination of a contract for sponsorship: At any time during the term of 
the contract, the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board may terminate the contract on one or 
more of the following grounds: 

(A)    Failure to meet the requirements for student performance set forth in the terms of 
the contract; 
(B)    Failure to meet the standards of fiscal management set forth in the terms of the 
contract; 
(C)    Violations of applicable state, federal, tribal, or local laws, statutes, and/or 
regulations; 
(D)    Other good cause as established by the Board, which may include, but shall not be 
limited to: 

(i)    Failure by the governing body of the charter school, its charter school 
administrators, charter school personnel, and/or charter school contractors to 
meet reporting deadlines necessary for compliance with state or federal statutes 
or regulations; 
(ii)    Failure by the governing body of the charter school, its charter school 
administrators, charter school personnel, and/or charter school contractors to 
accurately report student enrollment counts; 
(iii)    Failure by the governing body of the charter school, its charter school 
administrators, charter school personnel, and/or charter school contractors to 
accurately report and/or classify student accountability data; 
(iv)    Identification and/or designation of the charter school by the State Board of 

26



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

25 
 

Education as consistently in need of improvement in accordance with subsection 
(g)(6) of Section 1003 of Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
of 1965 (ESEA), pursuant to 70 O.S. § 1210.544; 
(v)    Any material breach of the terms set forth in the contract for sponsorship; 
and 
(vi)    Any action or failure to act by the governing body of the charter school, its 
charter school administrators, charter school personnel, and/or charter school 
contractors that presents or results in an immediate and serious danger to the 
health, safety, and welfare of its students. 

(2)    Notice of intent to terminate contract. At least ninety (90) calendar days prior to 
termination of a contract for sponsorship of a statewide virtual charter school, the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board shall submit written notice of its intent to terminate the contract via 
certified mail, return receipt requested to the governing board of the charter school at the address 
of record set forth in the contract. In addition, the governing body chairperson shall be notified 
via electronic mail.  The notice shall include: 

(A)    A statement of any and all factual and legal grounds upon which the Board's intent 
to terminate the contract is based; 
(B)    A statement of the date, time, and location of the meeting at which the Board 
intends to take final action on the proposed termination, which shall be held no earlier 
than forty-five (45) calendar days from the date the notice of intent to terminate is mailed 
to the charter school; and 
(C)    A statement that the governing board of the school may request a hearing before the 
Board to present evidence in opposition to the proposed termination by delivering a 
written request to the Board within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of notice of the 
intent to terminate the contract that includes: 

(i)    A response to the factual and legal grounds for termination set forth in the 
notice; and 
(ii)    A summary of evidence that the school intends to submit in support of its 
response. 

(D)    Within ten (10) calendar days of the date of receipt of the request for hearing, the 
Board shall schedule a hearing and submit written notice of the date, time, and location of 
the hearing by regular mail to the charter school's address of record set forth in the 
sponsorship contract. The Board may send a courtesy copy of the notice by facsimile, 
and/or email. 

(3)    Hearing on termination. In the event that a hearing is requested pursuant to the provisions 
of (2)(C) of this subsection, the Board shall promptly schedule a hearing at which the statewide 
virtual charter school may present argument and/or evidence in opposition to the proposed 
termination. The Board shall prescribe the time allotted for oral argument and presentation of 
evidence. Upon completion of the hearing, the Board may consider the merits of the argument 
and presentation of evidence and take action on the proposed termination, or it may schedule 
action on the proposed termination for a subsequent board meeting to provide the board with 
further opportunity for deliberation. 
(4)    Appeals of termination. The procedures for filing appeals to the State Board of Education 
shall be governed by 70 O.S. § 3-145.3 and the policies and rules adopted by the State Board of 
Education, with a copy of the appeal mailed to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 

(g)    Negotiation and execution of contracts for sponsorship. To facilitate and/or expedite negotiations 
for new contracts for sponsorship, the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board may adopt a model 
contract for sponsorship of a statewide virtual charter school for use by the Board and potential statewide 
virtual charter schools sponsored by the Board. Adoption of a model contract shall not prohibit the Board 
from further negotiation of contract terms or addition of terms to the contract for sponsorship prior to 
execution of the contract so long as such terms are in compliance with applicable state, federal, local, 

27



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

26 
 

and/or tribal law and the provisions of this Section. 
(h)    Execution of the contract. The final contract for sponsorship shall not be executed until approved 
by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board at a regular or special meeting. The Board may delegate 
authority to the Chairman to execute the approved contract for sponsorship on behalf of the Board. 

 
777:10-3-4. Oversight and evaluation of virtual charter schools by the Statewide Virtual Charter 
School Board 
(a)    Oversight and annual review. The Statewide Virtual Charter School will provide ongoing 
oversight of the charter schools through data and evidence collection, site visits, attendance of governing 
board meetings, school website compliance checks, and school performance reviews. At the end of each 
year, schools will be subject to an annual review consisting of a compilation of performance ratings and 
findings that will be shared with key stakeholders. The charter school will have fifteen (15) business days 
to respond to the annual review in writing and such response will become part of the public record. A 
formal review of school performance may be conducted during the contract term, as applicable. The 
annual review report and any response will be posted to the SVCSB's website along with other 
information regarding each of the schools. 
(b)    Performance framework. The performance framework establishes accountability criteria for 
virtual charter schools authorized by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board that assesses schools on 
their ability to operate as a sound, independent school that successfully serves all students in the areas of 
academic, financial, and organizational capacities. The board will use a checklist to determine if the 
charter school meets the standards or does not meet the standards for each criteria criterion. 

(1)    Oklahoma performance measures will be used to assess the school's academic performance, 
including overall achievement, overall growth, subgroup achievement, subgroup growth and post-
secondary readiness. Academic performance is measured via twenty-four (24) accountability 
indicators (see items A-X below). To meet the expectations, schools must demonstrate attainment 
of each indicator for each grade level and will be given weight accordingly. Indicators and 
measurements required to demonstrate that each standard has been met for achievement in each 
category are listed below. Sub-group measures will only be applicable if the school has a 
minimum of ten (10) students in the sub-group. 

(A)    Are students achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Reading/English 
Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(B)    Are students achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Math? 
(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5%  or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(C)    Are students enrolled in the school for two or more consecutive academic years 
achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Reading/English Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 

28



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

27 
 

 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(D)    Are students enrolled in the school for two or more consecutive academic years 
achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(E)    Are students enrolled in the school for three or more consecutive academic years 
achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Reading/English Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(F)    Are students enrolled in the school for three or more consecutive academic years 
achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(G)    Are students in the special education subgroup achieving proficiency on statewide 
assessments in Reading/English Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(H)    Are students in the special education subgroup achieving proficiency on statewide 
assessments in Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(I)    Are students in the special education subgroup enrolled for two or more consecutive 

29



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

28 
 

academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Reading/English 
Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5%or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(J)    Are students in the special education subgroup enrolled for two or more consecutive 
academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(K)    Are students in the special education subgroup enrolled for three or more 
consecutive academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in 
Reading/English Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(L)    Are students in the special education subgroup enrolled for three or more 
consecutive academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(M)    Are students in the economically disadvantaged subgroup achieving proficiency on 
statewide assessments in Reading/English Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(N)    Are students in the economically disadvantaged achieving proficiency on statewide 
assessments in Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 

30



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

29 
 

(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(O)    Are students in the economically disadvantaged subgroup enrolled for two or more 
consecutive academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in 
Reading/English Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(P)    Are students in the economically disadvantaged subgroup enrolled for two or more 
consecutive academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(Q)    Are students in the economically disadvantaged subgroup enrolled for three or 
more consecutive academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in 
Reading/English Language Arts? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(R)    Are students in the economically disadvantaged subgroup enrolled for three or 
more consecutive academic years achieving proficiency on statewide assessments in 
Math? 

(i)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level on 
the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is equal to or 
above the state level of proficiency; or 
(ii)    The percentage of students scoring proficient or above at each grade level 
on the Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) state assessments is improved 
5% or greater each year over the baseline score established the first year of the 
charter contract term. 

(S)    Based on state expectations for student graduation within four years, does the 
school meet the expectations for student graduation? 

(i)    The school's most recent graduation rate is equal to or greater than the most 
recent graduation rate for the State of Oklahoma or 
(ii)    The school's most recent graduation rate increased 20% or more of the 
difference between the graduation rate of the baseline year and 100% over the 
past two years. 

(T)    Based on the extended-year adjusted graduation rate, does the school meet the 

31



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

30 
 

expectations for student graduation? Evidence indicates a majority of extended-year 
students graduating. 
(U)    Did the school meet the expectation for graduating eligible seniors during the most 
recent year? The percent of eligible seniors enrolled on the first day of the school year 
and graduating in the current school year is equal to or greater than the current graduation 
rate for the State of Oklahoma. 
(V)    Are the school's students participating in the American College Testing (ACT) 
college preparation assessment process? The most recent year's American College 
Testing (ACT) participation rate is equal to or greater than the most recent rate recorded 
for the State of Oklahoma. 
(W)    Does the school's student performance on the American College Testing (ACT) 
meet the state performance level? The school's most recent year's average composite 
American College Testing (ACT) score is equal to or greater than the most recent average 
score recorded for the State of Oklahoma 
(X)    Are students benefiting from college and career readiness opportunities (i.e. college 
preparatory coursework, college remediation data, Career Technology programs, other 
industry certification programs, internships, concurrent college course enrollment data, 
military service commitment)? Evidence provides a profile of college and career 
readiness opportunities. 
(Y)     Is the school's college remediation rate equal to or less than the state remediation 
rate?  The three-year average remediation rate of high school graduating classes indicates 
the school's college remediation rate is equal to or less than the state remediation rate. 

(2)    Fiscal viability of the schools is measured through audit findings, quarterly financial reports, 
and financial reporting. Financial performance is measured via six (6) accountability indicators 
(see items A-F below). To meet the expectations, schools must demonstrate attainment of each 
indicator. Indicators and measurements required to demonstrate that each standard has been met 
for achievement in each category are listed below. 

(A)    Did the school's most recent audit have findings? There were no findings of 
significant deficiencies, material noncompliance or known fraud on the school's most 
recent independent financial audit. 
(B)    Did any of the school's audits over the term of the contract have findings? There 
were no findings of significant deficiencies, material noncompliance or known fraud on 
any independent financial audits over the term of the charter contract? 
(C)    Did the school consistently submit appropriate quarterly financial reports to the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board over the most recent year? Appropriate reports 
were submitted in the Oklahoma Cost Accounting System (OCAS) format, on time, and 
indicating financial stability of the school. 
(D)    Did the school consistently submit appropriate quarterly financial reports to the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board over the term of the charter contract? 
Appropriate reports were submitted in the Oklahoma Cost Accounting System (OCAS) 
format, on time, and indicating financial stability of the school. 
(E)    Did the school consistently meet financial reporting expectations over the most 
recent year, as required by the State Department of Education and confirmed by the 
Office of Financial Accounting, Oklahoma Cost Accounting System (OCAS), and 
Audits? The State Department of Education confirms financial Financial reporting met 
expectations fulfilled over the most recent year. 
(F)    Did the school consistently meet financial reporting expectations over the term of 
the charter contract, as required by the State Department of Education and confirmed by 
the Office of Financial Accounting, Oklahoma Cost Accounting System (OCAS), and 
Audits? The State Department of Education confirms financial Financial reporting met 
expectations fulfilled over the term of the charter contract. 

32



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

31 
 

 
(3)    Organizational performance is measured by effective organizational structure, governance, 
record of compliance, attendance, recurrent enrollment, accreditation and student support. 
Organizational performance is measured via the accountability indicators listed. To meet the 
expectations, schools must demonstrate attainment of each indicator. Indicators and 
measurements required to demonstrate that each standard has been met for achievement in each 
category are listed below. 

(A)    Is the school faithful to its mission and implementing key design elements within 
the approved charter contract? Evidence documents faithfulness to the school's mission 
and implementation of key design elements of school. 
(B)    Does the school follow appropriate procedures to ensure student access and equity? 
Data confirms appropriate procedures to ensure student access and equity. 
(C)    Does the school have approved and appropriate policies and procedures that ensure 
student and staff safety and success, and does the school communicate those policies and 
procedures to students/families and staff? Approved and appropriate policies and 
procedures are implemented and communicated. 
(D)    Does the school adhere to applicable state and federal laws and regulations? 
Evidence suggests the school adheres to state and federal laws and regulations. 
(E)    Does the school adhere to the terms of the charter contract? Evidence suggests the 
school adheres to the charter contract. 
(F)    Does a stable governing board exist? History of board stability exists. 
(G)    Does the governing board recruit, select, orient and train members with skills and 
expertise to enable them to govern the school appropriately? Board agendas and minutes 
document board member activities. 
(H)    Does the charter school comply with the Open Meeting Act and Open Records 
Act? The charter school consistently complies with requirements of the Open Meeting 
Act and Open Records Act. 
(I)    Does the charter school provide transparency through Statewide Virtual Charter 
School Board access to school records? The charter school has provided the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board with all requested school records. 
(J)    Does the educational service provider(s) provide transparency through Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board access to school records? The charter school educational 
service provider(s) has provided the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board with all 
requested school records. 
(K)    Did the school consistently meet the reporting expectations as required by the State 
Department of Education during the most recent year? The State Department of 
Education confirms reporting expectations fulfilled. 
(L)    Did the school consistently meet the reporting expectations as required by the State 
Department of Education over the term of the charter contract? The State Department of 
Education confirms reporting expectations fulfilled. 
(M)    Did the school consistently meet the reporting expectations as required by the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board during the most recent year? Reporting 
expectations fulfilled as required - 90% or above in both on-time and accuracy categories. 
(N)    Did the school consistently meet the reporting expectations as required by the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board over the term of the charter contract? Reporting 
expectations fulfilled as required - 90% or above in both on-time and accuracy categories. 
(O)    Does the school website meet the standards for transparency and documentation as 
mandated by the Oklahoma School District Transparency Act and requested by the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board? The school has consistently met requirements 
for school website as mandated by the Oklahoma School District Transparency Act and 
requested by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 

33



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

32 
 

 
(P)    Did the school receive accreditation from the State Department of Education in the 
most recent year? The school received accreditation with no deficiencies noted from the 
State Department of Education in the most recent year. 
(Q)    Did the school receive accreditation from the State Department of Education over 
the term of the charter contract? The school received accreditation with no deficiencies 
noted from the State Department of Education over the term of the charter contract. 
(R)    Does the school meet the expectations for student attendance? Evidence documents 
the school met the State expectations for student attendance. 
(S)    Does recurrent enrollment of students meet expectations? The school's student 
recurrent enrollment rate meets the expectations indicated by the methodology used for 
public schools in Oklahoma. 
(T)    Does the school provide support structures for students and families that are 
accessible twenty-four (24) hours per day and seven (7) days per week, such as teacher 
support, individualized learning plans, guidance/counseling program, online tutoring and 
technical support?  Students and families have access to multiple support structures 
twenty-four (24) hours per day and seven (7) days per week. 
(U)    The charter school will submit up to three (3) data-driven goals and measurement 
criteria for approval by the SVCSB. 

(i)    Did the charter school meet the expectations of Goal One over the term of 
the charter contract? 
(ii)    Did the charter school meet the expectations of Goal Two over the term of 
the charter contract? 
(iii)    Did the charter school meet the expectations of Goal Three over the term 
of the charter contract? 

(4)    A Performance Framework Index will be calculated based on the following categories: 
(A)    Academic (A) Calculation - (Score) * (Weight) = A with at weight of 33.33%. 
(B)    Financial (F) Calculation - (Score) * (Weight) = F with at weight of 33.33%. 
(C)    Organizational (O) Calculation - (Score) * (Weight) = O with at weight of 33.33%. 
(D)    Performance Framework scores will guide reauthorization procedures. 

(i)    A Performance Framework Index (PFI) score of 80% or higher calculated 
over the course of the charter contract term will result in renewal of authorization 
for a five (5) year term should the governing board of the charter school choose 
to submit a letter requesting reauthorization. 
(ii)    A Performance Framework Index (PFI) score of 70% or higher calculated 
over the course of the charter contract term is expected. However, an application 
for renewal of authorization is required for consideration by the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board. 
(iii)    A Performance Framework Index (PFI) score of less than 70% calculated 
over the course of the charter contract term places the charter school at risk of 
non-approval of the renewal for authorization. An application for reauthorization 
is required for consideration by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 

(E)    In the event data is not available, the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board will 
designate corresponding score with "Not Applicable". 

(c)    Submission of school data. To aid the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board in assessing whether 
the schools are meeting the expectations of the performance framework, schools are required to submit 
school data to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board through an online data collection system. 

(1)    Schools must submit the requested documentation according to the instructions for the 
submission by the due date indicated in the online data collection system: 

(A) Current charter contract and any amendments; 
(B) Management contracts; 

34



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

33 
 

(C)     Lease/purchase agreements; 
(D)     Annual budget; 
(E)     Audit documents (audit, response, corrective action); 
(F)     School performance review report response; 
(G)     Key design elements of school report and evidence of implementation; 
(H)     College preparation coursework report Postsecondary opportunities report, 

including college preparation coursework, dual (concurrent) college enrollment, 
and industry certification programs and career technology program; 

(I)      Career technology programs report;  
(J I)     Senior graduation report; 
(KJ)     Current inventory report; 
(LK)     Quarterly financial statements; 
(ML)     Handbooks (Student/Family family Handbook handbook, Employee handbook); 
(NM)    School calendar; 
(ON)     Student support documentation; 
(PO)     Internal assessment plan; 
(QP)     School policies (attendance, employment, enrollment/lottery, code of ethics, and 
 conflict of interest); 
(RQ)     Current governing board rosters, including personal contact information; 
(SR)     Insurance verification; 
(TS)     Enrollment counts (initial, monthly and final)  
(UT)     Surety bond verification; 
(VU)     Accreditation application and status; 
(WV)    First Quarter Statistical Report summary; 
(XW)   Board meeting calendar, agendas, approved minutes and supporting board 
             meeting documents; 
(YX)    Plan for Improvement (if applicable); 
(ZY)     Final state aid and federal allocations; 
(AAZ)  ACT Profile Report; 
(BBAA)   Military service report; 
(CCBB)    Four (4) year cohort and extended year graduation rate documents; 
(DDCC)   Annual Statistical Report summary; 
(EEDD)    Strategic planning documents; 
(FFEE)     Oklahoma School Testing Program (OSTP) documentation; 
(GGFF)    Child counts; 
(HHGG)   Enrollment file; 
(IIHH)      Estimate of Needs; 
(JJII)     Supplemental Estimate of Needs (if applicable); 
(KKJJ)     Litigation documents;  
(LLKK)    State accountability report; 
(MMLL)   School organizational chart; 
(NNMM)  Comprehensive Exit Report Summary; 
(OONN)   Current by-laws; 
(PPOO)     Final Employee Compensation Report; 
(QQPP)    College remediation data; 

  (QQ)     Annual evaluation of each Education Service Provider providing services to the 
      governing body or school; and 

(RR)    Revenue and Expenditure Report. 
 (2)    In the event submission through the online system is not possible, the school must hand-
deliver hard-copy documentation to the office of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board by 
the due date. 

35



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

34 
 

(3)    Failure to submit the documentation is grounds for termination of the contract. 
(4)    Receipt of document submissions does not necessarily indicate approval of the content of 
the data. 
 

(d)    School website compliance. In order to aid in transparency, charter schools sponsored by the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board will be subject to website compliance checks at any time. The 
schools must have the following information available on its website: 

(1)    Governing board members (board member information, and office held if any); 
(2)    Schedule of governing board meetings as submitted to the Oklahoma County Clerk; 
(3)    Board meeting agendas; 
(4)    Board meeting approved minutes; 
(5)    School accountability reports; and 
(6)    Financial documents or a link to the Oklahoma Cost Accounting System (OCAS), in 
compliance with Oklahoma statute. 

(e)    School orientation.  Each statewide virtual charter school shall develop a student orientation that 
must be completed by each student prior to final enrollment in the school. The school shall maintain a 
record of completion of orientation by each student. The orientation shall contain, at a minimum, the 
following components: 

(1)    Enrollment requirements; 
(2)    Daily schedule and work expectations; 
(3)    School policies, including student engagement and attendance requirements; 
(4)    Student and Family Manuals; 
(45)   Communication streams (website, school and teacher connection, school administration and 
governing board contact); 
(56)     Academic expectations;  
(67)     Assessment requirements; 
(78)     Social expectations; 
(89)     Technology management; 
(910)    Academic program management; 
(1011)  Student support programs and services; and 
(1112)  Programs specific to the school. 

(f)    Annual audits. The charter schools shall change audit firms, at a minimum, every three (3) years to 
ensure annual audits are completed by two (2) different firms over the term of the charter contract. If the 
term of the charter contract is less than five (5) years, the charter school shall change audit firms every 
two (2) years, or otherwise, to ensure annual audits are completed by two (2) different firms over the term 
of the charter contract. 
(g)    Compliance audits.  In addition to the annual financial audits, the charter schools authorized by the 
SVCSB will be subject to compliance audits conducted by the SVCSB at any time during the charter 
contract term. 
 
777:10-3-5. Full-time virtual charter schools – succession of contractual rights and reversion of 
property to Statewide Virtual Charter School Board 
(a)    School Closure Process. Final school closure determination may be made as the result of voluntary 
or involuntary school closure decisions. This includes a decision of the charter school governing board to 
close the school, nonrenewal of a charter contract, or termination of a charter contract. In the event of a 
voluntary closure by the school, the final closure determination occurs as of the date the charter school 
governing board votes to close the school. In the event of an involuntary closure of the school, the final 
closure determination occurs as of the date the final order is issued by the SVCSB. Once a final closure 
determination is made the SVCSB will appoint a Closing Officer to provide oversight of school closure. 
Oversight responsibilities include management of the operational process of charter school closure and 
ensured continuation of appropriate educational services and transfer process for students and families, 

36



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

35 
 

and ensure the governing board of the charter school continues to meet as necessary to take actions 
needed to wind down school operations, manage school finances, allocate resources and facilitate all 
aspects of closure. Under the oversight and with the support of the Closing Officer, the charter school is 
responsible for completing the tasks required for the closing of the school in a legal and orderly manner 
while continuing to operate the school and provide academic and other services to students and families. 
With the exception of the cost of the SVCSB Closing Officer, all expenses of school closure will be 
provided for through charter school funds. These include, but are not limited to, the expense of contracted 
expertise such as accountants and auditor, general supplies and postage, and auction costs. The following 
School Closure Protocol will be implemented ten (10) business days after the final order is issued, and 
may be stayed by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board in the event of a request for reconsideration 
or rehearing: 

(1)    Within two (2) calendar weeks: 
(A)    The Closing Officer meets with the school's Chief Administrative officer and the 
Governing Board President to provide information regarding the school closure process 
and expectations. 
(B)    A special meeting of the charter school governing board will be called for to 
establish a Transition Team composed of school staff, applicant staff, and others 
designated by the applicant who will attend to the tasks and responsibilities of school 
closure on behalf of the school. 
(C)    The SVCSB issues a media release appropriate for public notification of charter 
school closure. 
(D)    A temporary hold will be placed on all state and federal funding. 
(E)    Notification of school closure determination is submitted to the Oklahoma State 
Department of Education (OSDE) including name of school, date of action, effective date 
of closure, criteria for closure determination, closure process information, and location of 
student and personnel records. Request name and contact information for OSDE 
representative for communication purposes and for assistance with closure. Similar 
notification also sent to the Oklahoma Teachers Retirement System (if applicable), State 
Treasurer, and State Auditor. 
(F)    Notification is made to parents of enrolled students regarding school closure 
determination including name of school, date of action, effective date of closure, and 
expected future communication to parents. 
(G)    Notification to school staff regarding school closure determination including name 
of school, date of action, effective date of closure, and expected future communication to 
school staff. 

(2)    Once a Transition Team is established, the following should occur within thirty (30) 
calendar days: 

(A)    The Closing Officer and Transition Team will establish a written student transfer 
plan including the steps required for the transfer of students and student records and the 
security of those records. 
(B)    The Closing Officer and Transition Team will contact Oklahoma school districts 
regarding charter school closure. 
(C)    The Closing Officer and Transition Team will establish a written plan for ongoing 
communication with families. This plan will include communication through closure 
process and a final report of school closure to charter school families. A list of all 
students/families will be generated and maintained to include student name, parent name, 
address, telephone, email, grade level, and school district of residence. 
(D)    The Closing Officer and Transition Team will establish a written plan for ongoing 
communication with staff. This plan will include the initial communication of school 
closure, follow-up communication as needed, and a final report of school closure to 
charter school staff. A list of all staff will be created to include name, position, address, 

37



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

36 
 

telephone, email. Notification includes information regarding closure determination, 
closure date, personnel records, and benefits. 
(E)    The Closing Officer and Transition Team will secure all financial and personnel 
records. In addition, Closing Officer and Transition Team will identify all agencies, 
employees, insurers, contractors, creditors, debtors, grantors, and management 
organizations. The statewide virtual charter school shall provide the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board with executed copies of all of the following documents: 

(i)    A detailed list of all real and/or personal property and other assets procured 
by the charter school during the term of the contract that includes identification 
of all sources of funds used to procure the property. All items procured all or in 
part with state, local or federal funds shall be clearly identified. 
(ii)    Title documents, deeds, and/or leases for all real or personal property or 
other assets procured all or in part with state or federal funds. 
(iii)    Copies of all executory contracts to which the charter school or its 
governing body is a party. 
(iv)    All documentation relating to debt, liabilities, encumbrances, or other 
obligations incurred by the charter school and/or the governing body of the 
charter school during the term of the sponsorship contract. 
(v)    The Closing Officer and Transition Team Chair will ensure a complete 
financial accounting. A financial plan for school closure will be established. The 
Closing Officer may include other financial experts on behalf of the SVCSB to 
assist with the process.  Financial Plan must ensure only essential invoices and 
regular salaries paid, all vendor refunds received, and the immediate collection of 
all credit cards and closing of accounts.  
(vi)    All assets will be inventoried. Inventory shall include name of asset, 
quantity, estimated value, and location of property. Assets include, but are not 
limited to, property, furnishings, technology, books, supplies, and equipment. 
(vii)    All assets will be confirmed by the Closing Officer and Transition Team. 
Within forty-five (45) business days of a final closure determination date, the 
charter school assets may be liquidated and funds used to satisfy remaining 
school debt. Otherwise the sponsor may dispose of remaining school property as 
deemed appropriate and retaining any remaining funds. 

(3)    Prior to final closeout, the charter school shall complete all federal, state, and local 
obligations on behalf of school employees as governed by Federal and State Statute and 
regulations; including but not limited to the following: 

(A)    File all final federal, state, and local employer payroll tax returns and issue final W-
2s and Form 1099s by the statutory deadlines. 
(B)    File the Federal Notice of Discontinuance with the Department of Treasury. 
(C)    Make final federal tax payments. 
(D)    File the final withholding tax return. 
(E)    File the final return with the IRS. 
(F)    Complete all tax requirements of the State of Oklahoma. 
(G)    Provide employees with notices and pamphlets required under applicable state and 
federal law. 

(4)    Within thirty (30) business days of school closure, all school records, including but not 
limited to, student, personnel and financial records are received and secured by the SVCSB or the 
State Department of Education (SDE). 
(5)    Within forty-five (45) business days of school closure, a final school closure audit will be 
conducted and provided to the SVCSB. A copy of the audit will be presented to the State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction, and all fiscal balances of the charter school will be retained 
by the charter school authorizer. 

38



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

37 
 

 
(6)    The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall have forty-five (45) calendar days after 
the date of delivery of all of the documents set forth in (3) of this subsection to request any 
additional documentation from the charter school the Board deems necessary to determine the 
assets and liabilities of the statewide virtual charter school. 
(7)    The Closing Officer will report school closure progress to the SVCSB at each regular 
meeting through the school closing transition period. 
(8)    Upon completion of school closure, a final report from the Closing Officer will be presented 
to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 
(9)    All personal property of the charter school reverting to the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board in accordance with the provisions of 70 O.S. 3-136 and this Section shall be delivered to 
the Board no later than sixty (60) calendar days after the School Closure Date in the manner and 
to the location(s) directed by the Board. 
(10)    The Chairman of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board is authorized to execute 
conveyances and documents on behalf of the Board as necessary to fulfill the requirements of this 
subsection. 

(b)    School district contracts for sponsorship of full-time virtual charter schools. In accordance with 
the provisions of 70 O.S. 3-145.5, the following provisions shall apply to school district contracts for 
sponsorship of charter schools who provide full-time virtual education: 

(1)    Contracts for sponsorship of a full-time virtual charter school. Beginning July 1, 2014, 
no school district shall: 

(A)    Offer full-time virtual education to any student whose legal residence, as 
determined in accordance with the provisions of 70 O.S. § 1-113, is located outside of the 
boundaries of the school district; or 
(B)    Enter a contract to provide full-time virtual education to any student whose legal 
residence, as determined in accordance with the provisions of 70 O.S. § 1-113, is located 
outside of the boundaries of the school district. 

(2)    Succession of contracts for school district sponsorship of a virtual charter school 
executed prior to January 1, 2014. Beginning July 1, 2014, the Statewide Virtual Charter 
School Board shall succeed to the contractual sponsorship rights of any school district that 
executed a contract for sponsorship of a charter school prior to January 1, 2014. Contract 
succession shall be conducted in accordance with all of the following procedures: 

(A)    No later than July 1, 2014, the charter school shall provide the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board with all of the following documents: 

(i)    All of the documentation set forth in (a)(3) through (a)(4) of this Section;  
(ii)    Copies of all reports, documents, and statements required by the Oklahoma 
Public School Audit Law, for all previous fiscal years of the charter school's 
operation; including, but not limited to, auditor's opinions and related financial 
statements of the charter school; and 
(iii)    Copies of the charter school's annual estimate of needs, and income and 
expenditure data required by 70 O.S. §§ 5-135 and 5-135.2 for all previous fiscal 
years of the charter school's operation. 

(B)    The terms of succession to the contract for sponsorship by the Statewide Virtual 
Charter School Board shall be as follows: 

(i)    The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall not succeed to any terms 
of a contract for sponsorship executed between a charter school and a school 
district that violates or conflicts with the Oklahoma Charter Schools Act and/or 
any state or federal laws and regulations applicable to charter schools, charter 
school sponsors, or the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. In the event that 
any such statute or regulation goes into effect during the term of the contract, the 
conflicting contractual term shall be deemed superseded by law and deemed null 

39



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

38 
 

and void. 
(ii)    Any debt, obligations, encumbrances, and/or liabilities incurred by the 
charter school in violation of the provisions of Art. 10 § 26 of the Oklahoma 
Constitution shall be deemed null and void, and shall not be assumed by the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. 
(iii)    The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board may require the statewide 
virtual charter school to execute an addendum to the contract for sponsorship for 
the purpose of clarifying terms not otherwise addressed in the existing contract as 
necessary to comply with the Oklahoma Charter Schools Act or any other 
provision of state or federal law applicable to charter schools. 

(C)    The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall not distribute any state aid funds 
to a statewide virtual charter school pursuant to the provisions of this subsection until all 
of the following conditions have been met: 

(i)    All appropriate conveyances and other documents necessary to effect the 
transfer of any property associated with the contract have been finally executed 
by the parties and copies of the finally executed documents have been filed with 
the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board; 
(ii)    All property, equipment, supplies, records, and assets required to be 
transferred to the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board in accordance with the 
provisions of 70 O.S. § 3-145.5(B) has been delivered in the manner and to the 
location(s) directed by the Board; 
(iii)    The charter school is in compliance with all applicable state and federal 
regulations pertaining to charter schools; and 
(iv)    All other requirements of this paragraph have been met. 

(D)    The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall not distribute midyear allocation 
funds to a statewide virtual charter school that is a party to a contract for sponsorship 
assumed by the Statewide Virtual Charter School pursuant to the provisions of this 
subsection until: 

(i)    The statewide virtual charter school has conducted a final audit of the 
charter school for fiscal year 2014 that complies with the Oklahoma Public 
School Audit Law at 70 O.S. § 22-101 et seq and accompanying regulations; 
(ii)    Copies of the auditor's opinions, related financial statements, and any other 
documentation pertaining to the audit have been provided to the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board; and 
(iii)    The charter school has presented the audit at a meeting of the Statewide 
Virtual Charter School Board. 

(E)    Succession to the contractual rights and responsibilities of sponsorship by the 
Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall not qualify the charter school to apply for 
funds from the Charter School Incentive Fund established pursuant to the provisions of 
70 O.S. § 3-144, nor shall the first year of operation under the sponsorship of the Board 
be considered the charter school's first year of operation. 
(F)    The Chairman of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board is authorized to 
execute conveyances and documents on behalf of the Board as necessary to fulfill the 
requirements of this subsection. 

 
(c)    Termination or nonrenewal for good cause. Failure by any charter school to comply with the 
provisions of this Section shall constitute good cause for: 

(1)    Termination or nonrenewal of a contract for sponsorship with the Statewide Virtual Charter 
School Board; and/or 
(2)    Denial of any application for sponsorship subsequently submitted by the charter school 
and/or authorized representatives of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the 

40



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

39 
 

governing body of a charter school. 
SUBCHAPTER 5.  STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL FACILITIES 

 
777:10-5-3. Statewide virtual charter school sites 
(a)    Face-to-face instruction. No statewide virtual charter school or employee of the statewide virtual 
charter school shall provide face-to-face instruction to any charter school student unless the instruction 
occurs at either: 
 (1)   The legal residence of a student or the parent/legal guardian of a student; or 

(2)   A facility approved as a charter school site of the statewide virtual charter school in which 
the student is enrolled.  

(b)    Approval of statewide virtual charter school sites. The Board may approve a charter school site if 
the following conditions have been met: 

(1)    The statewide virtual charter school submits an application at least sixty (60) calendar days 
prior to beginning face-to-face instruction at the facility; 
(2)    The facility complies with all federal and state statutes and regulations governing safety that 
are applicable to public school facilities; and 
(3)    The facility has been approved by the State Department of Education Office of 
Accreditation. 

(c)    Reporting of approved statewide virtual charter school sites. No later than July 1 prior to each 
school year, each statewide virtual charter school shall provide the State Department of Education with a 
list of all approved statewide virtual charter school sites. A statewide virtual charter school shall not be 
eligible to obtain funding for instruction provided at any statewide virtual charter school site not approved 
and reported in accordance with the provisions of this Section and all other applicable statutes and 
regulations pertaining to charter school facilities. 
(d)    Transportation supplement funding. A statewide virtual charter school shall not be eligible to 
receive transportation supplement funding for transportation to a statewide virtual charter school site in 
accordance with the provisions of 70 O.S. § 3-141 for any school year without a written transportation 
plan approved by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board. The statewide virtual charter school shall 
submit its approved transportation plan to the State Department of Education Office of State Aid no later 
than July 1 prior to the school year for which the transportation plan has been approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

40 
 

 
CHAPTER 15.  OKLAHOMA SUPPLEMENTAL ONLINE COURSE CERTIFICATION 

 
777:15-1-1. Purpose 

The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board (SVCSB) makes publicly available a list of 
supplemental online courses which it has reviewed and/or certified to ensure that the courses are high 
quality options and are aligned with the subject matter standards approved by the State of Oklahoma. In 
conjunction with the Office of Management and Enterprise Services (OMES), the SVCSB negotiates with 
online course providers to offer a state rate price to school districts for supplemental online courses. 
These rules have been adopted for the purpose of implementing policy and procedures pursuant to 
Oklahoma Statute Title 70, Section 3-145.3. 
 
777:15-1-2. Definitions  
 The following words and terms, when used in this Chapter, shall have the following meaning, 
unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Course provider" means an entity that meets eligibility requirements and provides an online 
course to Oklahoma school districts. 

"Course review" means the process conducted by content and pedagogical experts to ensure 
courses recommended for certification by the SVCSB meet the established standards.  

"Oklahoma Online Course Catalog" means a publicly available listing of courses certified (or 
pending review) by the SVCSB available through approved Course Providers. 

"Online course" means an educational course in which instruction and content are delivered 
primarily over the Internet. A student and teacher are in different locations for a majority of the student′s 
instructional period, most instructional activities take place in an online environment, the online 
instructional activities are integral to the academic program, consistent communication between a student 
and a teacher and among students is emphasized, and a student is not required to be located on the 
physical premises of a public school district. An online course is the equivalent of what would typically 
be taught in one semester.  

"Receiver district" means an Oklahoma public school district that has students enrolled in the 
district who take one or more online courses. 

 
777:15-1-3. Application for course certification 
(a)   To have a course(s) listed in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog, Course Providers must first be 
approved as vendors through the Oklahoma Management and Enterprise System (OMES) and enter into a 
contract with the state. Potential vendors must respond to the Request for Proposals (RFP) released by the 
SVCSB through OMES and provide all required documentation according to the deadline listed in the 
RFP solicitation.  
(b)   Once the solicitation period has closed online provider is registered as a state vendor, OMES and the 
SVCSB will negotiate and enter into a contract with the approved vendor to provide online courses at a 
state rate vendors all submitted materials will be reviewed for compliance by the SVCSB and OMES. 
Entities meeting the minimum criteria established in the RFP will be approved as vendors for the State of 
Oklahoma. 
 
777:15-1-4. Pricing 

Each course offered through the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog must be offered at a price that 
does not exceed the lowest price at which the course is offered for use or sale to any state, public school, 
or school district in the United States. The price of any course or item or service for the course must 
automatically be reduced to the extent that, and at the same time as, the price is reduced or offered for a 
lesser fee elsewhere in the United States. A course or item or service for the course must be provided free 
of charge or at a price discount to the same extent that it is provided to any state, public school, or school 
district anywhere in the United States.  

42



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

41 
 

 
777:15-1-5. Course review requirements 
(a) Online Course Providers must supply the following at the time of course review: 

(1) The name of the institution or organization providing the online content; 
(2) Course title and subject code (using appropriate course title and subject code as established  
by the Oklahoma State Department of Education′s approved Subject Codes for the appropriate 
academic year); 
(3) Number of students who may be admitted to the course per instructor; 
(4)  Explanation of the alignment between Oklahoma content standards and course 

       content and assignments; 
(5)  Protocols established to monitor student engagement and course progression,  

         including guidelines to address non-responsive students; 
(6)  Description of procedures for reporting students′ course progression, grade and  

         other student information to the local school district; 
(7)  Instructor credentials and qualifications; and 
(8)  Course NCAA eligibility status. Recognition of course by external entity (e.g., NCAA, 
College Board Authorized, AdvancED certification); and 
(9) Course syllabus that includes:  

(a) course title;  
(b) course description;  
(c) course credits;  
(d) objectives that clearly state, in measureable terms, what the students will know or be 
able to do at the end of the course;  
(e) assignments/assessments;  
(f) instructional strategies and student expectations, including any synchronous 
attendance requirements;  
(g) time requirements;  
(h) grading policy;  
(i) contact policies for communication between teacher and students and teacher and 
parents;  
(j) resources and materials required;  
(k) technology requirements, including the Learning Management System (LMS) 
utilized;  
(l) accommodation and accessibility statement; and  
(m) course outline (i.e. list of units/modules in sequential order). 

(b)   At the time of the course review, guest access to the course will be required for the reviewers. If 
substantive changes are made to a course since its last certification, it must be submitted for review 
regardless of its current status in the review cycle. Substantive changes would include altering the 
intended course outcomes, significantly changing instructional strategies or assessment protocols used in 
the course as a whole, or any revision that impacts standards alignment. Only courses certified (or 
pending review) by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board will be accepted into the Oklahoma 
Online Course Catalog. 
(c)   Course Providers whose courses have undergone review and approval by a recognized third-party 
entity must provide the results of those reviews. Depending on the results of the external review, a course 
may be recommended for state certification with no additional review or with a modified review process 
(e.g. review only for alignment to state standards). 
(cd)   Course Providers of Advanced Placement (AP) courses must provide the results of their College 
Board AP Course Audit and Authorization. No other course evaluation will be conducted for AP Courses. 
If a course is authorized by the College Board as an AP course, it is automatically listed as “state-
certified” in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog. Online Providers must provide evidence annually of 
AP Authorization Renewal. 

43



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

42 
 

 
777:15-1-6. Course review and certification process 
(a)   All approved vendors will have the online courses they submitted as part of the RFP published on the 
OSOCP website in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog and reviewed according to the schedule adopted 
by the SVCSB. 
(b)   Course reviews will be conducted by content experts and pedagogical experts selected by the 
SVCSB. Courses will be evaluated using rubrics to determine alignment with the current academic 
standards approved by the State of Oklahoma (or nationally/ internationally accepted content standards 
set for courses whose content is not included in state standards) and national standards for quality in 
online course design. the International Association for K-12 Online Learning (iNACOL) National 
Standards for Quality Online Courses. The rubric published in the most current National Standards for 
Quality Online Courses will be used as part of the Course Review, along with a rubric to measure the 
presence of each of the academic standards for the content area. Course Providers whose courses have 
undergone review and approval by a recognized third-party entity must provide the results of those 
reviews. Depending on the results of the external review, a course may be recommended for state 
certification with no additional review or with a modified review process (e.g. review only for alignment 
to state standards). Online Course Providers of Advanced Placement (AP) courses must provide the 
results of the AP Course Audit and Authorization. No other course evaluation will be conducted for AP 
Courses. Online Providers must provide evidence annually of AP Authorization Renewal. 
(c)   If results of the initial review suggest that a course will not be recommended for certification, the 
Course Provider will be contacted with the review results and will have fifteen (15) calendar days to 
revise material or provide additional information pertinent to the review. These revisions will be 
examined by the course reviewers and, if appropriate, the rubric scores will be modified. Once the course 
review is complete, results of the evaluation will be presented to the Statewide Virtual Charter School 
Board (SVCSB). The SVCSB will consider the evidence and vote whether to certify or not certify the 
course. The decision will be made on a simple majority vote. If the SVCSB votes to not certify a course, 
the course will be removed from the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog and the Course Provider will be 
notified of the reasons the course was not certified. The Course Provider may revise the course and 
resubmit for additional Course Review and certification consideration. Resubmitted courses will be 
reviewed after all submitted courses have undergone an initial review. Courses approved will be certified 
for a five-year period. After which, Course Providers must apply for renewal. Certified courses will be 
identified as such and have their course review ratings published in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog 
available on the OSOCP website. Courses pending review will be identified as such and have the date of 
their scheduled review published in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog. 
 
777:15-1-7. Certified courses remaining in good standing 
(a)  To remain in good standing and have a course(s) continuously listed in the Oklahoma Online Course 
Catalog through the entirety of the approval period, Course Providers agree to:  

(1) Maintain their vendor status. 
(2) Notify the SVCSB of any additions, deletions or changes to certified courses by completing the 
online form located on the OSOCP website. 
(3) Serve all enrolled students, regardless of number enrolled in a section so that Receiver Districts 
have reliable course options for students.  
(4) Provide online instructors who are 1) certified in Oklahoma or another state to teach in the 
content area of the course offered; or 2) a faculty member at an accredited institution of higher 
education, possessing the specific content expertise necessary to teach the course. Additionally, the 
Course Provider shall supply certification or applicable credentialing documentation to the SVCSB 
as part of the course review process and within ten (10) working days upon the hire of any new 
instructors for any certified course. The Course Provider shall be responsible for such obligation 
regardless of whether instructors are employees of the Course Provider, independent contractors, or 

44



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

43 
 

employees of a third-party course vendor. Course Providers shall take all steps necessary to verify 
the qualifications of non-employee instructors. 
(5) Notify SVCSB in writing within ten (10) working days if for any reason an online instructor no 
longer meets the requirements to teach a course offered. The name and credentials of the 
replacement instructor must also be provided at that time. 
(6) Refer only to courses currently certified and listed in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog as 

“Statewide Virtual Charter School Board approved.” 
(7) Own, secure, and/or maintain licensure and copyright for all courses offered in the Oklahoma 
Online Course Catalog.  
(8) Maintain a current course syllabus including key information such as examinations requiring 
proctoring and other supporting information (see syllabus requirements in Course Review 
Requirements).  
(98) Course Providers of Advanced Placement (AP) courses must provide evidence annually of AP 
Authorization Renewal. 

(109) Refrain from significantly modifying or changing courses without prior notice and  
approval from the SVCSB. Course Providers shall provide written notice of any planned modification 
in sufficient detail for SVCSB Course Reviewers to determine whether the course continues to satisfy 
all requirements. Failure to obtain written approval may result in removal of the course from the 
approved catalog. 
(1110) Ensure that each certified course is maintained throughout the duration that the course is  
offered and continues to meet the current academic standards approved by the State of Oklahoma; 
national standards for quality in online course design the International Association for K-12 Online 
Learning (iNACOL) National Standards for Quality Online Courses; and Oklahoma′s Information 
Technology Accessibility Standards.  
(1211) Employ the appropriate course title and subject code as established by the Oklahoma State 
Department of Education′s approved Subject Codes for the appropriate academic year for the purpose 
of data collection. 
(1312) Report aggregate student success data to the SVSCB in the requested format and by the 
timeline set. The SVCSB does not collect individual student information. By August 1 of each year, 
the Course Provider will report the following aggregate student success data to the SVCSB: 

(A) Total number of unique Oklahoma students; 
(B) Total number of courses taken by Oklahoma students; 
(C) Number of students in each course (both overall number and Oklahoma students); and 
(D) Successful completion rate (number and percent) of each course (i.e. X#/60% of students 
enrolled in X successfully completed the course). Include both overall rates and Oklahoma-
specific rates. 

(b)   Course providers will be notified if a course(s) is found to be noncompliant and will have fifteen (15) 
business days after notification to bring the course(s) into compliance. If the course(s) is still 
noncompliant at the end of this period, the course certification will be revoked and the course will be 
removed from the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog.  

 
777:15-1-8. Process for course certification renewal 

Courses that remain in good standing are certified for a period of five years. Course Providers 
may apply for renewal of their course certification six months prior to the completion of the course 
approval period. Course Providers will notify the SVCSB of their intent to apply for renewal by 
submitting all documents listed in the Course Review Requirements. Course Providers who have 
maintained their “good standing” status throughout the course approval period will have their courses 
reviewed and considered for certification following a similar procedure as their initial Course Review and 
Certification Process. Aggregate student success data will be considered in renewal decisions. 
Additionally, the SVCSB may survey districts to collect satisfaction data and those data may also be 
considered in renewal decisions. Course Providers who have not maintained a “good standing” status 

45



2020 Proposed Administrative Rules 

44 
 

must provide documentation explaining the lapse in "good standing" status and the protocols that are in 
place to prevent such a lapse in the future.  
777:15-1-9. SVCSB responsibilities 
The SVCSB shall: 
 (1)  Ensure that all courses listed in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog are reviewed 
 according to the stated requirements. 
 (2)  Notify the Course Providers of changes in current academic standards approved by the State 
of Oklahoma; national standards for quality in online course design the International Association for K-12 
Online Learning (iNACOL) National Standards for Quality Online Courses; and Oklahoma′s Information 
Technology Accessibility Standards, or other standards that prompt the need for course revisions.  Such 
notification is a courtesy and does not negate the responsibility of the Course Providers to maintain 
currency with regard to these standards.   
 (3) Maintain accurate information in the Oklahoma Online Course Catalog. 
 

46



1

Lynn Stickney

From: Adams, Bryce <bryce.adams@pearson.com>
Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 8:55 AM
To: SVCSB Info
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Public Comment on Title 777 Administrative Rules

Good morning, 
 
I have one minor comment on 777:10‐1‐4 Education service providers, that officers of the Governing Board may also 
access the school accounts. A possible revision might look like this: 
 

(3) All funds utilized to operate the charter school, including but limited to paying charter school employees, 
provide curriculum, technology, supplies and/or extra‐curricular activities to students shall be maintained in 
charter school accounts and controlled by officers of the Governing Board and charter school employees. 

 
Thank you for your consideration! 
Bryce 
 

Bryce Adams 
Director, State Account Relations 
Online & Blended Learning 

  
Learn more at pearson.com 
  

 

 
Always Learning 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

47


	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE OPEN MEETING ACT
(Special scheduled meeting held February 16, 2021)

This specially scheduled meeting of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board has been convened in accordance with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act.

This meeting was preceded by advance notice of the date, time and place, filed with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on February 11, 2021.

Notice of this meeting was also given at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting by posting notice of the date, time, place and agenda of the meeting by 2:00pm on February 11,2021, on the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board website and at the principal office of the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board, located at 840 Research Parkway Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.
	3. PERMANENT RULE MAKING AND PUBLIC COMMENT

Pursuant to Notice of Rulemaking Intent: 
 
The Statewide Virtual Charter School Board shall hold a rule hearing and hear public comment regarding proposed rule changes currently on the Board meeting agenda. Public comments will be limited to only proposed rule changes.  A sign-up sheet will be posted at least fifteen (15) minutes prior to the scheduled start time of the Board Meeting.  Sign up must be completed prior to the scheduled start time of the meeting.  Only individuals who have signed up to speak will be recognized during the Public Comment period and will be recognized in the order in which they have signed in.  Each speaker will be allocated five (5) minutes for presentation.  The Board Chairperson may interrupt and/or terminate any presentation during public comment, which does not conform to the procedures outlined under this Section.  The Board Chairperson reserves and retains the right to interrupt or postpone public comment as necessary to effectuate the management of the public meeting.
 
(Action)           Hearing and consideration of public comments, discussion and possible vote to adopt proposed amendments to Title 777 of the Oklahoma Administrative Code as presented or as may be revised after public hearing and discussion - Chairman Robert Franklin and Marie Schuble, Counsel for the Board and Assistant Attorney General
 
TITLE 777. STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD
CHAPTER 1. STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOLS
Subchapter 1.  General Provisions

777:1-1-6.  Records requests. [AMENDED]

CHAPTER 10. STATEWIDE VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOLS
Subchapter 1.  General Provisions
 
777:10-1-2.  Definitions [AMENDED]
777:10-1-3.  School establishment requirements [AMENDED]
777:10-1-4.  Management organizations [NEW]
777:10-1-5.  Learning funds [NEW]

Subchapter 3. Statewide Virtual Charter School Sponsorship
 
777:10-3-3.  Applications to sponsor statewide virtual charter schools; renewal and termination of contracts for sponsorship of statewide virtual charter schools [AMENDED]
777:10-3-4.  Oversight and evaluation of virtual charter schools by the Statewide Virtual Charter School Board [AMENDED]
777:10-3-5.  Statewide virtual charter school facilities [AMENDED]

CHAPTER 15. OKLAHOMA SUPPLEMENTAL ONLINE COURSE CERTIFICATION

777:15-1-1.  Purpose [AMENDED]
777:15-1-3.  Application for course certification [AMENDED]
777:15-1-5   Course review requirements [AMENDED]
777:15-1-6.  Course review and certification process [AMENDED]
777:15-1-7.  Certified courses remaining in good standing [AMENDED]
777:15-1-9.  SVCSB responsibilities [AMENDED]
	2020 Proposed Title 777 Chapter Permanent Rule Changes
	1.11.21 - OKCA Bryce Adams

	4. ADJOURNMENT

